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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

To 

All the shareholders

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms

Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited 

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited

Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority

Annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited for the year 

2018 together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 for your kind information 

and record.

Thank you

Sincerely yours

Md. Masud Rana

Company Secretary (C.C)

11 June 2019

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

NOTICE OF THE 23RD ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (AGM)
 
Notice is hereby given that the 23rd Annual General Meeting of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited will 

be held on June 26, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. at Spectra Convention Centre Limited, House-19, Road-7, Gulshan-1, Dhaka -1212, 

to transact the following business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Director’s Report and the audited Financial Statements of the company for the year
 ended December 31, 2018 together with the Auditors Report thereon. 

2. To declare dividend for the year 2018 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

3. To elect/re-elect directors in place of retiring directors from Group-A Shareholders & Group-B Shareholders.  

4. To appoint /re-appointment Auditors for the year 2019 and fix their remuneration.

5. To appoint Compliance Auditor for the year 2019 and fix their remuneration.

6. To transact any other business with permission of the Chair.

By the order of the Board

Md.Masud Rana

Company Secretary (C.C)

Date:  June11, 2019 

                  

Notes

a)  The record date: May16, 2019

b) Members of the company whose names appear in the depository register on record date will be entitled to dividend

 for the year 2018 to be approved by the shareholders in the 23rd Annual General Meeting. 

c)  A member wishing to appoint a Proxy, must deposit the Proxy Form duly stamped at Tk. 20/- to the company’s Head Office

 at least 72 hours before the meeting.  

d) Entry to the Annual General Meeting is reserved only for the shareholders or his/her Attendance Slip/Proxy. 

e) In compliance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s circular # SEC/CMRRCD/ 2009-193/154

 dated 24 October 2013, no gift/gift coupon/food box etc. shall be distributed on the meeting day.



evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW

BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE CO. LTD.
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited (BNICL) started its journey in 1996 as a non-life general insurance 

company with the prime objective of delivering a range of non-life insurance coverage solution like Fire, Motor, Marine 

or Miscellaneous Insurance. BNICL has been incorporated as a public limited company under the Companies ACT, 

1994 and obtained the certificate of commencement of business from the register of joint stock companies & firms on 

May 21, 1996. The company also listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited 

on 21 April 2016. The company also obtained license to operate its business from IDRA (Former Controller of Insurance ) 

on 21 May 1996. The shareholding structure of BNICL consists of reputed corporate houses, leading industrialists & 

general public. Other important information of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited is as follows:

Date of certificate of incorporation : 21 May 1996

Date of certificate for commencement of business : 21 May 1996

Date of Registration to carry on non-life insurance business : 01 June 1996

Authorized Capital : Tk. 100,00,00,000.00

Paid-up capital : Tk.44,25,00,000.00

Head Office : Rashid Tower (3rd Floor), Plot # 11, Road # 18

  Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh.

  Phone: (PABX) 8832234-5, 8832215, 8832217

  Fax: 88-02-8832154

Registered Office : W.W. Tower (Level-15)

  68, Motijheel Commercial Area 

  Dhaka- 1000, Bangladesh.

Nature of Business : All Kinds of non-life insurance business

Auditors : A. Hoque & Co.

  Chartered Accountants

Compliance Auditors : Nurul Azim & Co.

  Chartered Accountants

Website : www.bnicl.net

  

BNICL AT A GLANCE
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

VISION
To be the most quality insurance and risk solution service provider 
in the country with the high standard of customer Services.
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

MISSION
 Building long-term mutually beneficial relationship with business partners

 Practicing fair business ethics and values

Applying “state of art” technology, processes including enterprise risk management and innovative
solutions

 Developing and retaining highly motivated professional team of employees 

 Enhancing profitability and financial strength

 To operate in accordance with the law of the land and as per international norms and practices

 To provide promptly the best possible services ensuring security of our clients

 To extend a professional hand to our clients at all times

 To serve the interests of shareholders
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
 To carry out qualitative nation-wide non-life insurance coverage.

 To be attractive to customers by being a competitive independent and pre-eminent insurance
coverage.

 To ensure that shareholders achieve a long-term, competitive, stable return.

 To improve the position of the company in the insurance market.

 To ensure the expense ratio is lower than the general market.

 To increase the growth of the company by increasing the non-life premium year after year.

 To improve continuously company’s product features. 

 To attract and keep profitable customers by delivering a high level of customer service.

 To decrease the risk of reinvestment of insurance premium.

 To be able to attract and keep qualified employees.
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS
 Compliance with law and the legal system is the fundamental principle for BNICL. Every employee, sponsor

and director obeys the laws and regulations of the legal systems on the land within which one acts. 

 Respect to personal integrity, privacy and right of individual is maintained by everyone that all works together with
individual’s backgrounds, ethics, cultures, gender, religions and ages. 

 Perform fairly with the quality and price of the innovative products and services, not by offering improper benefits to
others. 

 Employees are not permitted to use their jobs to solicit, to demand, accept, obtain or be promised advantages.

 To conduct business with reputable clients and business partners who are involved in lawful business activities.
Never facilitate money laundering.

 Employees make sure all the business decisions for the best interest of the company and not based on their
personal interest.

 Protecting all assets of the company including intangible/tangible assets and use them only for the benefit of
the Company.

 Maintain open, fair and effective communication for truthful reporting. The company maintains sound processes
and controls on every transaction are executed within approved authorization. 

 Maintain confidentiality in its client’s business.
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

CORE VALUES
Client Focus
Always listening to clients.

Integrity/Honesty
Always treating the stakeholders fairly and conduct the business in a dignified and ethical manner.

Professionalism
Always maintaining good relationship with clients with respect and in good faith.

Dynamism
Always practicing good dynamism and responsive to the changing needs of the stakeholders.

Accountability
Always taking full responsibility to the corporate activities and honor the commitments.

Nurturing
Always providing equal opportunity to the employees/clients/stakeholders that encourage each of them to improve the 
overall activities of the company.
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited started its journey with a vision of becoming one of the market 
leaders in the insurance sector. In line with that BNICL always concentrated providing highest standard of risk coverage 
solution to the clients. Developed its products features more customarily for the clients. Resulting clients feel comfort 
with us. By dint of this, company was able to create its brand image and reliability before the customers as well as the 
other stakeholders.

In spite of looking to the short term success; BNICL management crossed its fingers for attaining the long term growth. 
Resulting, the company listed with DSE and CSE in the year 2016. It helped the company to enrich the reliability of the 
company in the business sector. BNICL believed in walking collectively with the business conglomerates.  

Over the years BNICL established itself in such a way that accomplished its position by being clear and easily under-
standable to the customers, only happens for our good payment nature of the claims. Clients always like to smile with 
us, we like to walk collectively. 

BNICL believes that company’s positive growth achieved in 2018 will be continued in coming years. Following the 
country’s GDP growth, BNICL intends to go forward with all its stakeholders and the community as a whole by walking 
collectively.

WALKING COLLECTIVELY
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE
Company’s performance analysis is an analytic process that enables the management to achieve the pre-selected 
goals of the company. It is a part of total business performance that has three main activities. They are useful for selection 
of goals, helpful for taking financial decisions and reflect the light of performance analysis. Company’s performances 
over the last five years are presented below:

 

Gross Premium 501.91 476.73 441.04 362.39 326.12

Net Premium 372.03 373.55 346.29 270.15 249.43

Claims Paid 172.36 156.72 140.26 87.47 122.48

Investment & Other Income (Gross) 74.61 53.71 60.06 58.64 43.00

Underwriting Profit/Loss 62.93 62.06 49.08 26.11 25.73

Net Profit Before Tax 117.36 94.40 81.61 74.35 59.07

Paid up Capital 442.50 442.50 442.50 265.50 265.50

Deposit Premium 12.87 10.30 7.36 27.66 13.70

Total Reserves 504.84 462.45 411.30 310.00 252.15

Total Assets 1326.38 1236.00 1123.40 832.25 723.65

Total Liabilities 366.19 320.75 262.24 229.09 192.31

Cash & Bank Balances 836.43 921.62 857.78 609.90 522.69

Face Value Per Share (In Taka) 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

Earning Per Share (In Taka) 2.00 1.64 1.62 1.87 2.62

Book Value Per Share (In Taka) 18.02 17.05 16.15 17.60 15.74

Dividend (Cash) 12% 10% 10% 0% 0% 

(Amount in Million)

2018Particulars 2017 2016 2015 2014
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

PERFORMANCE ILLUSTRATION
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

PERFORMANCE ILLUSTRATION

Claims Paid
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Investments & Others Income
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Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Professor Dr. Mijanur Rahman 
Mohammed Salim, FCMA
Professor Dr. Goutam Buddha Das
Fakhruddin Ahmed, FCMA, FCA

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mostafa Jasim Raihani, FCA

COMPANY SECRETARY  (C.C)
Md. Masud Rana

CHAIRMAN
Abdul Baset Majumder

VICE CHAIRMAN
Mostafa Kamal

DIRECTOR
Beauty Akter
Md. Abdur Rouf
Tahmina Binthe Mostafa
Taif Bin Yousuf
Tanjima Binthe Mostafa
Wasikur Rahman
Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa
Yousuf Ali
Tasnim Binthe Mostafa 

PUBLIC DIRECTOR
Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam

Md. Ruhul Amin
Md. Hasan Rajib Prodhan

Mohd. Naim Akhter
Md. Mozaffar Hossain

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Md. Sana Ullah
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
Abdul Baset Majumder
Chairman

Mr. Abdul Baset Majumder is one of the sponsors of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. Currently he is the Chairman of the Company. He is the son of late 
Abdul Aziz Majumder & late Jamila Khatun, was born in a respectable Muslim family 
in Brahmanbaria, Comilla on 01 January 1936. He has brilliant academic career. 
After successfully completion of his education, he started practicing in law. Now he 
is a senior advocate of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh.He is the former Vice 
President of Supreme Court Bar Council. He is actively associated with a number of 
socio-cultural organizations as a donor and a life member.

Mostafa Kamal
Vice Chairman

Mr. Mostafa Kamal is the Vice Chairman of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited.  He is the son of late Al-Hajj Noor Miah & late Al-Hajj Ayesha 
Khatun, was born in a respectable Muslim family in Chauddagram, Comilla on 2nd 
February 1955. He started his business career as an entrepreneur after his educa-
tion and now he is a prominent industrialist of the country. He has reputation in his 
business personality. He is the Honorable Chairman and Managing Director of 
Meghna Group of Industries. He is associated with a number of companies in the 
field of shipping, cement, edible oil, vegetable oil, food items etc. He is a member of 
standing committee on import, Tariff and Anti-dumping of FBCCI, Secretary General of 
Bangladesh Vegetable Oil Refiners, President of Bangladesh Woven Tape Bag Manufactur-
ers’ Association and Bangladesh Cement Manufacturers’ Association. He is the 
founder of Al-Hajj Noor Miah Degree College, Al-Hajj Ayesha Noor Welfare Founda-
tion, Kankapaith Primary School. Mr. Mostafa Kamal is also involved in socio-cultural 
and educational institutes. 

Beauty Akter
Director

Mrs. Beauty Akter, daughter of Al-Hajj Md. Abdul Hakim & Al-Hajj Ambia Khatun and 
wife of prominent industrialist Mostafa Kamal, was born on 1 February, 1965 in 
Comilla. She involved herself with her husband’s business and built reputation as an 
astute and efficient business entrepreneur. Mrs. Beauty Akter is one of the sponsor 
directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. She is one of the 
founding shareholders of Meghna Group of Industries. She is the Director of United 
Salt Industries Limited, Meghna Dairy and Food Products Limited, Kamal Trading 
Co. Limited, Kamal Imports and exports Limited, United Fiber Industries Limited and 
Meghna Vegetable Oil Industries Limited. Now she  is the Vice Chairman of Meghna 
Group. 
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Tahmina Binthe Mostafa
Director

Mrs. Tahmina Binthe Mostafa was born on July 24, 1986 in Dhaka. She obtained her 
Masters and Bachelors Degree from the University of Greenwich, U.K. After comple-
tion of her education, Mrs. Tahmina Binthe Mostafa started her business career in 
one of the leading business conglomerates in Bangladesh. She is one of the direc-
tors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. She has business experi-
ence in the field of sugar, mineral water, dairy and food products, cement, hatchery 
& feed, fiber, coconut oil, mustard oil, power plant, printing & packaging etc. 

Tanjima Binthe Mostafa
Director

Mrs. Tanjima Binthe Mostafa was born on July 01, 1987 in Dhaka. She obtained her 
Bachelor of Science in Business in Management from the Babson College, Boston, 
USA, majoring in Entrepreneurial studies. After the completion of her education, she 
started business in various field and joined Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited as a director. 

Taif Bin Yousuf
Director

Mr. Taif Bin Yousuf, son of Md. Yousuf & Mrs. Majeda Yousuf, was born on 20 
August, 1982. At present, he is a Director of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. He is also senior executive director of  Meghna group of industries 
He completed his graduation from London Metropolitan University, majoring in 
Business and Information Technology. He has 8 years of business experience. He 
joined in the Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited 
on 19 December, 2012.

Tahmina Binthe Mostafa
Director

Mrs. Tahmina Binthe Mostafa was born on July 24, 1986 in Dhaka. She obtained her 
Masters and Bachelors Degree from the University of Greenwich, U.K. After comple
tion of her education, Mrs. Tahmina Binthe Mostafa started her business career in 
one of the leading business conglomerates in Bangladesh. She is one of the direc
tors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. She has business experi
ence in the field of sugar, mineral water, dairy and food products, cement, hatchery 
& feed, fiber, coconut oil, mustard oil, power plant, printing & packaging etc. 

Md. Abdur Rouf
Director

Mr. Md. Abdur Rouf was born on 1 January, 1968 in Comilla. His father’s name is late 
Mr. Abdur Rahman and mother’s name is Asia Khatun. He started his career in 
business just after completion of his education. His business affiliation includes 
insurance, communication etc. He is a sponsor director of the company. 

Mrs. Tanjima Binthe Mostafa was born on July 01, 1987 in Dhaka. She obtained her 
Bachelor of Science in Business in Management from the Babson College, Boston, 
USA, majoring in Entrepreneurial studies. After the completion of her education, she 
started business in various field and joined Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited as a director. 

Mr. Taif Bin Yousuf, son of Md. Yousuf & Mrs. Majeda Yousuf, was born on 
August, 1982. At present, he is a Director of Bangladesh National Insur
Company Limited. He is also senior executive director of  Meghna group of industries 
He completed his graduation from London Metropolitan University, majoring in 
Business and Information Technology. He has 8 
joined in the Board of Directors of Bangladesh
on 19 December, 2012.

Taif Bin Yousuf
Director

Tanjima Binthe Mostafa
Director
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Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa
Director

Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa was born on December 03, 1992 in Dhaka. He 
completed his High School Diploma (American System) and IB Certificate 
(International Bacchalurate) in 2010 from American International School, Dhaka. He 
also completed University Foundation Program Diploma in 2012. At present, he is a 
student of University of London, Queen Mary College, studying Bachelor of Science 
(Honors), with a major in Business and Management. Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa 
started his business in various field in Bangladesh and joined Bangladesh National 
Insurance Company Limited as a director.  

Mr. Yousuf Ali
Director 

Mr. Yousuf Ali, son of Kala Chan Sarder & Mrs. Amatun Nessa was born on 3 
September 1972 in a respectable Muslim family. He is an FCMA. He completed his 
Masters of Commerce in Accounting from Dhaka University. Currently he is one of 
the Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited. He has interest in 
various socio-cultural activities.  
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Ms. Tasnim Binthe Mostafa
Director

Ms. Tasnim Binthe Mostafa, daughter of Mr. Mostafa Kamal & Mrs. Beauty Akter was 
born on 05 February 1998 in Dhaka. She obtained her LL.B. (Hons) degree from 
Queen Mary University of London, UK in 2019. As a young talent, she joined her 
family business at her early age and contributed in different area of the business. 
Thereafter, she joined in the Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. She is also a shareholder of Unique Infoway Limited.    
  

Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa
Director

Wasikur Rahman
Director

Mr. Wasikur Rahman, son of Late Naziur Rahman Monju & Reba Rahman was born 
in a respectable Muslim family in Dhaka, on 16th January 1987. He obtained his Bar- 
At –Law (Bar Vocational Course) at LINCOLN’S INN -2010, He obtained his Post 
Graduate Diploma in law from the – University of law in 2009. He obtained his LLB 
Hon’s from Queen Marry University London in 2008. After successfully finishing his 
academic life, he started practicing law as an advocate in the Supreme Court of 
Bangladesh.



Annual Report - 28

Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman 
Independent Director

Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman is an Independent Director of Bangladesh National Insur-
ance Company Limited. Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman, son of late Abdul Gani, was born 
on 01 January, 1958. He obtained B.Com. (Hons) and M.Com in Marketing from the 
University of Dhaka in 1978 & 1979 respectively. He did his Ph.D. in Business 
Administration from Aligarh Muslim University, India in 1994. He has a teaching 
experience of 31 years at university level. At present, He is the Vice Chancellor of 
Jagannath University. He has been serving as a professor of Marketing in the Univer-
sity of Dhaka since 1999. He has a commendable list of publications. He is the 
author of several well acclaimed books.

Mohammed Salim FCMA
Independent Director

Mr. Mohammed Salim is an Independent Director of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. Mohammed Salim, son of late Zaher Alam Chowdhury and Firoza 
Begum, was born on 31 October, 1963. He obtained Master of Commerce (M.Com.) 
from the University of Dhaka in 1987 and Master of Business Administration (MBA) 
from the University of Hull, UK in 1997. He is a fellow of Cost and Management 
Accountants (ACMA), ICMA Bangladesh and a member of National Institute of 
Accountants (MNIA), Australia. He served as the President of the Institute of Cost and 
Management Accountants of Bangladesh (ICMAB). He has 28 years of profes-
sional background leading all aspects of accounting, budgeting, forecasting, financial 
analysis, treasury management, reporting and project financing. 

Professor Dr. Gautam Buddha Das
Independent Director

Professor Dr. Gautam Buddha Das is an Independent Director of Bangladesh 
National Insurance Company Limited. Professor Dr. Gautam Buddha Das, is the son 
of Swadesh Ranjan Das and Sabitri Rani Das, was born on 1st July, 1963. He 
obtained his B.Sc. A.H. (Hons) and M.Sc.(A.H) from Bangladesh Agricultural Univer-
sity, Mymensingh in 1985 & 1986 respectively. He did his Ph.D. from Bangladesh 
Agricultural University, Mymensingh in 2012. Mr. Das has 30 years of teaching and 
research experience. Mr. Gautam Buddha Das is the Vice Chancellor of Chittagong 
Veterinary and Animal Sciences University.  He is a professor at the Department of 
Animal Science and Animal Nutrition, Chittagong Veterinary and Animal Sciences 
University, Khulshi, Chittagong from April 15, 2003 till now. He has also served as the 
Dean, Faculty of Food Science and Technology and Head, Department of Animal 
Science and Animal Nutrition. He is a life member of Bangabandhu Krishibid 
Parishad and member, Krishibid Institution of Bangladesh.  
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Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam 
Public Director

Mr. Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam is a Public Director of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. He joined in the Board of Directors on 14 June 2017. He is a 
fellow member of the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Bangladesh. 
He has vast experience in business and consultancy.

Md. Ruhul Amin
Public Director

Mr. Md. Ruhul Amin, FCA is a practicing Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh Since 
1981. He qualified from the institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) 
in 1980. He was a member of National Wages & Productivity Commission Govt. of 
Bangladesh 1999. He served under Bangladesh Textile Mills Corporation (BTMC) as 
Head of Accounts in different Projects/Mills for more than 10 years. 

Fakhruddin Ahmed, FCMA, FCA
Independent Director

Mr. Fakhruddin Ahmed is an Independent Director of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited.Mr. Fakhruddin Ahmed, son of late Mr. Abdur Rahman, was born 
on 01 January, 1963. He obtained B.Com (Hons.) in Accounting and 
M.Com.(Accounting) from the University of Dhaka in 1983 & 1984 respectively. He is 
a Certified Chartered Accountant and Auditor and also a Certified Cost & Manage-
ment Accountant and Auditor. He is enlisted as a fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh. He has more than 26 years of professional 
experience in the field of finance and accounts. He is the Managing Director of 
Newage Accessories Limited, Newage Textiles Limited and Newage Plastics 
Limited. He has also worked as a part-time lecturer in the State University of Bangla-
desh, the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Bangladesh (ICMAB), 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) and Bangladesh 
Institute of Bank Management (BIBM).

Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam 
Public Director

Mr. Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam is a Public Director of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. He joined in the Board of Directors on 14 June 2017. He is a 
fellow member of the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Bangladesh. 
He has vast experience in business and consultancy.

Institute of Bank Management (BIBM).

Mr. Md. Ruhul Amin, FCA is a practicing Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh Since 
1981. He qualified from the institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) 
in 1980. He was a member of National Wages & Productivity Commission Govt. of 
Bangladesh 1999. He served under Bangladesh Textile Mills Corporation (BTMC) as 
Head of Accounts in different Projects/Mills for more than 10 years. 

Md. Ruhul Amin
Public Director



Annual Report - 30

Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

Mohd. Naim Akhter
Public Director 

Mr. Mohd. Naim Akhter is a Public Director of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. He joined in the Board of Directors on 14 June 2017. He is B.A. 
graduated, and a well known businessman. He has around 29 years of business 
experience in trading field.

Md. Mozaffar Hossain
Public Director

Mr. Md. Mozaffar Hossain is a Public Director of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. He joined in the Board of Directors on 14 June 2017. He is a 
fellow member of the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Bangladesh. 
He has around 16 years of professional experience in different conglomerates.     

Md. Hasan Rajib Prodhan
Public Director  

Mr. Md. Hasan Rajib Prodhan is a Public Director of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. He joined in the Board of Directors on 14 June 2017. He did his 
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PRODUCTS & SERVICES
Marine insurance
BNIC Marine Risks is a specialist marine insurance broker. Our sole aim is to provide highly competitive, first class 
marine insurance solutions to the risks faced by maritime enterprises across the world. This singular purpose defines 
our approach and underlines our commitment to consistently exceeding our clients’ expectations.

Marine insurance covers the loss or damage of ships, cargo, terminals, and any transport or cargo by which property is 
transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and final destination.

Fire insurance 
Fire insurance policy can be bought by anyone who is the legal owner of a residential landed property or apartment in 
order to protect it against loss of or damage to such property. The contents of a home can also be insured against.

You are the owner of a house, your fire insurance policy may be extended to include permanent fixtures and fittings 
such as fitted kitchen and bedroom closets/cupboards and interior decorations. Outbuildings such as maids quarters or 
garages may be included as well. The extent of structures to be included will depend on their inclusion in the build up 
in the sum insured.

In addition, the contents of your home like furniture, carpets, TV, video, hi-fi equipment, piano, bookcase, books, lamps, 
ornaments, PC, clothing, bedding, kitchenware and appliances, personal effects etc and leasehold improvements can 
be insured as well. Often the policy on contents/leasehold improvements is issued separately from the policy on the 
structure although some insurers issue a combined policy for houses.

Many a poet have wondered about the dual power of fire – so constructive and beneficial, yet with the potential to cause 
so much damage. A single fire accident has the power to wreak complete havoc burning down buildings, plant and 
machinery and even stocks. A single spark can lead to so much loss and unless adequately insured, a business will find 
it very difficult to rise from the ashes. With Cholamandalam MS Fire Insurance, ensure that your business is adequately 
covered against damage arising out of various fire and fire-related perils.

Motor insurance 
Motor insurance (also known as auto insurance, car insurance, or motor insurance) is insurance purchased for cars, 
trucks, and other vehicles. Its primary use is to provide protection against losses incurred as a result of traffic accidents 
and against liability that could be incurred in an accident.

Under the provisions of Motor Vehicles Act, all vehicles that ply in public places must have an insurance policy that at 
least covers “Third Party Liability” as specified under the Act. A Comprehensive Motor Insurance Cover in addition to 
the mandatory third-party cover also protects the car owner from financial losses, caused by loss or damage or theft of 
the vehicle.

Miscellaneous insurance 
Miscellaneous insurance like other forms of insurance is a form of collectivism by means of which people collectively 
pool their risk, in this case the risk of incurring medical expenses. The collective is usually publicly owned or else is 
organized on a non-profit basis for the members of the pool, though in some countries medical insurance pools may 
also be managed by for-profit companies. It is sometimes used more broadly to include insurance covering disability or 
long-term nursing or custodial care needs. It may be provided through a government-sponsored social insurance
program, or from private insurance companies. It may be purchased on a group basis (e.g., by a firm to cover its 
employees) or purchased by an individual. In each case, the covered groups or individuals pay premiums or taxes to 
help protect themselves from unexpected healthcare expenses. Similar benefits paying for medical expenses may also 
be provided through social welfare programs funded by the government.

By estimating the overall risk of healthcare expenses, a routine finance structure (such as a monthly premium or annual 
tax) can be developed, ensuring that money is available to pay for the healthcare benefits specified in the insurance 
agreement. The benefit is administered by a central organization such as a government agency, private business, or 
not-for-profit entity.
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MESSAGE FROM
THE CHAIRMAN

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

Honorable shareholders – Assalamu Alaikum

I am privileged to welcome you all to the 23rd Annual General Meeting of Bangladesh National Insurance Company 
Limited. On behalf of the Board of Directors, I express my sincere appreciation to you all for being with us for the year 
2018 and feels happy to declare 12% cash dividend for the shareholders. I also take this opportunity for sharing our 
successes, challenges and directions to be followed for the future to cope up with the economy changes. Besides, I am 
also delighted to present the Annual Report of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited for the year 2018 
along with the audited financial statements and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended 31 December 2018 before you.
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The Bangladesh Government has been published the “National Insurance Policy” for developing the insurance industry 
of the country. We thanked Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority for their initiatives in this regard and hope 
that under the new chairmanship of Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority, insurance industry further move 
forward.  

Bangladesh has been able to maintain sustained economic growth even in the face of global financial crisis. A well 
balanced fiscal policy, higher private and public sector investment and stable political situation increase the GDP growth 
of 7.90 percent in FY 2018, despite having flood and rohingya refugee crises at the end of the year. Per capita income 
increased by USD 1610 to USD 1675 and in 2018 revenue income increased from the last year which enabled the 
government to take up large infrastructure projects.

Under these circumstances, your company posted net profit before tax Tk.117.36 million only. Gross premium income 
and net premium income stood at Tk.501.91 million and Tk.372.03 million, representing a growth of 5.28 % and (0.41)% 
respectively over the previous year. Total Assets of the company at stood 1326.38 million as at 31 December 2018 
showing a growth of 7.31 % comparing with the last year. We hope that in the year 2019, the performance of the 
company will be continued in a same profitable manner also.   

Your company also established a good market reputation for timely claim settlement and built a strong platform for 
continuous future growth with the utilization of the merits of experienced management. To increase the branding image 
of the company, we launched new company logo as well.   

I thankfully acknowledge the support and cooperation that the company received from Ministry of Finance, Bangladesh 
Bank, Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, Dhaka 
Stock Exchange Limited, Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited, Sadharan Bima Corporation, overseas brokers and all 
related Government and private organizations.

Sincere thanks also goes to my fellow colleagues of the management and staff of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited whose loyalty, dedication, professionalism, positive attitude and commitment has been fundamental 
to the performance in the year 2018 and to paving the way forward for smooth growth in the years to come.

Gratefulness also goes to our Board of Directors for their valuable guidance, prudent and timely decisions to drive the 
company to ultimate destination. Your company has a committed, sincere, hardworking team who can make the dream 
true for the company. 

Finally, I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude also to regulators, sponsors, shareholders, stakeholders, manage-
ment, policyholder and all well-wishers for their support they have been rendering to us during the year 2018.

Allah Hafez

Thanking you

Abdul Baset Majumder
Chairman
Board of Directors

18 April 2019
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‡Pqvig¨vb g‡nv`‡qi e³e¨

wemwgjøvwn&i ivngvwbi ivwng

m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi e„›` - Avmmvjvgy AvjvBKzg

evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi 23Zg evwl©K mvavib mfvq Avcbv‡`i‡K ¯^vMZ Rvbv‡Z †c‡i Avwg AZ¨šÍ Avbw›`Z| 

cl©‡`i cÿ †_‡K mKj m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìviMY‡K 2018 mv‡j Avgv‡`i mv‡_ _vKvi Rb¨ AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` Rvbvw”Q, Avwg Lye Avbw›`Z 

†h cwiPvjbv cl©` G eQi Avcbv‡`i Rb¨  12% bM` jf¨vsk †NvlYv K‡i‡Q| ZvB Avwg Avgv‡`i GB mvdj¨ Avcbv‡`i mv‡_ fvM K‡i 

wb‡Z PvB Ges AvMvgx‡Z GB mvdj¨ a‡i †i‡L †h †Kvb A_©‰bwZK cÖwZ‡hvMxZv‡K †gvKv‡ejv Kivi Rb¨ Avcbv‡`i‡K cv‡k PvB| 

cvkvcvwk,  2018 mv‡ji evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b Ges wbixwÿZ Avw_©K weeibx I AwWUim wi‡cvU© Avcbv‡`i gv‡S †ck Ki‡Z †c‡i Avwg 

Avbw›`Z|

MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi ÒRvZxq exgv cwjwmÓ cÖKvwkZ K‡i‡Q| GB Kv‡Ri Rb¨ wewfbœ c`‡ÿc MÖnb Kivq Avwg exgv Dbœqb I 

wbqš¿Y KZ…©cÿ †K ab¨ev` RvbvB Ges wek¦vm Kwi †h bZzb wb‡qvMcÖvß gvbbxq †Pqvigv‡bi Aax‡b exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿Y KZ…©cÿ Av‡iv 

mvg‡bi w`‡K GwM‡q hv‡e|

evsjv‡`k µgvbœ‡q †UKmB A_©‰bwZK Dbœqb mvab K‡i Pj‡Q †hLv‡b wek¦ A_©bxwZ GKwU msKUgq mgq cvi Ki‡Q| PgrKvi Avw_©K bxwZ, 

miKvix Ges †emiKvix wewb‡qv‡Mi D×©MwZ Ges w¯’i ivR‰bwZK cwiw¯’wZi Kvi‡b 2018 mv‡j evsjv‡`‡ki wRwWwc cÖe„w× wQj 7.90 

kZvsk, hw`I G eQi wQj eb¨v KewjZ Ges †kl cvwÿ‡Ki iwn½v wiwdDwR msKU| gv_vwcQz Avq †e‡o‡Q BD.Gm.wW. 1610 n‡Z 

BD.Gm.wW. 1675 Wjvi Ges 2018 mv‡j ivR¯^ Avq MZeQ‡ii Zzjbvq e„w× ‡c‡q‡Q hv miKvi‡K mKj †hvMv‡hvM e¨e¯’vi Dbœq‡b 

mnvqZv Ki‡Q|

GgZve¯’vq, Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx 117.36 wgwjqb UvKv gybvdv AR©b K‡i‡Q| †gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq Ges wbU wcÖwgqvg Avq n‡q‡Q 501.91 

wgwjqb UvKv Ges 372.03 wgwjqb UvKv, hv 5.28% Ges (0.41)% cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i| †gvU m¤úwËi cwigvb `vwo‡q‡Q 31 wW‡m¤^i 

2018Bs Zvwi‡L 1,326.38 wgwjqb †hLv‡b Av‡Q 7.31% cÖe„w×| Avgiv AvkvKwi 2019 mv‡jI Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbxi djvdj Giæc 

DbœwZi w`‡K _vK‡e| 

mgqgZ exgv ̀ vex wb®úwËi gva¨‡g Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx mybvg AR©b K‡i‡Q Ges †mB mv‡_ AwfÁ e¨e¯’vcbv KZ…©c‡ÿi Kg©`ÿZv‡K Kv‡R 

jvwM‡q †Kv¤úvbxi k³ wfwË ˆZix n‡q‡Q| hv fwel¨‡Z wbqwgZ AMÖMwZ e‡q wb‡q Avm‡e| †Kv¤úvbxi fveg~wZ©  e„w× Kivi j‡ÿ¨ bZzb 

†jv‡Mv Gi m~Pbv Kiv n‡q‡Q|

Avwg AvšÍwiKfv‡e ab¨ev` RvbvB A_© gš¿bvjq, evsjv‡`k e¨vsK, exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿Y KZ…©cÿ, evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ 

Kwgkb, XvKv ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwgwUW, wPUvMs ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW, mvavib exgv K‡c©v‡ikb, we‡`kx cybtexgv cªwZôvb I mswkøó mKj 

miKvix I †emiKvix ms¯’vmn exgv MÖvnK‡`i Zv‡`i mn‡hvMxZvi Rb¨|

Avwg Av‡iv ab¨ev` RvbvB evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi e¨e¯’vcbv KZ…©cÿ‡K Ges mKj Kg©KZ©v Kg©Pvix‡`i‡K 

hv‡`i mZZv, mn‡hvMxZv Ges Kg©Kv‡Ûi gva¨‡g 2018 mv‡ji mvdj¨ AwR©Z n‡q‡Q Ges hv fwel¨‡ZI GKBfv‡e Pj‡Z _vK‡e|

Avwg K…ZÁZv cÖKvk KiwQ cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i Kv‡Q hv‡`i g~j¨evb w`K-wb‡`©kbv Ges mwVK mg‡q mwVK wm×v‡šÍi gva¨‡g †Kv¤úvbx Zvi 

MšÍ‡e¨ †cŠQv‡Z mg_© n‡q‡Q| Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbxi Av‡Q GK`j mr I my`ÿ Kg©x hviv wKbv †Kv¤úvbxi Rb¨ †h‡Kvb ¯^cœ ev¯Í‡e iæc`vb 

Ki‡Z cv‡i|

cwi‡k‡l Avwg ab¨ev` RvbvB mKj wbqš¿Y ms¯’v, ¯úÝi, †kqvi †nvìvi, †÷K †nvìvi, e¨e¯’vcbv KZ…©cÿ, exgv MÖvnK Ges mKj 

kyfvKv•Lx`‡i hv‡`i mn‡hvMxZvq 2018 mv‡ji mvdj¨ AR©b n‡q‡Q|

Avjøvn nv‡dR

ab¨ev`v‡šÍ

Ave`yj ev‡mZ gRyg`vi

‡Pqvig¨vb 

cl©`

18 GwcÖj 2019Bs
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Dear Shareholders
It is a great pleasure and privilege on the part of the Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company 
Limited to present the Annual Report for the year 2018 inclusive of the audited financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on 31 December 2018 and the Auditor’s Report thereon, for consideration and approval of the 
esteemed Shareholders. Beside, the Board also welcomes all the present shareholders whose presence in this 23rd 
Annual General Meeting makes enlighten and provide us huge encouragement to work hard for upcoming days for 
producing good result for the company.

The Board of Directors expresses their sincere thanks to all the shareholders for being with the company over the year 
2018 and humbly discloses that during the year 2018 the company was able to unveil net profit of Tk.117, 356,032 only 
and posted Tk.2.00 EPS. The Board also expresses his happiness for recommendation of 12% cash dividend for the 
year 2018 for the shareholders.

World economy
According to International Monetary Fund (IMF), global economic growth expansion has weakened mainly due to tariff 
increases enacted in USA and its continued trade friction with Europe, China and other major economies. Apart from 
trade tensions, slowdown of Chinese economy, uncertainties associated with BREXIT deal or no-deal, tightening of 
financial conditions in advanced economies and continued political-economic instability in certain Latin American coun-
tries all contribute to the slow down process. World economic growth is now projected at 3.7% for 2018, 3.5% for 2019 
and 3.6% for 2020, of which advanced economies will grow at 2%, and the emerging markets and Developing countries 
at 4.5 percent over 2019 and 2020 years Meanwhile ADB has made its growth forecast for developing Asian countries 
at 6.0 per cent in 2018 and 5.8 per cent in 2019. With a projected growth rate of 7.0% and 7.2% Bangladesh falls in the 
category of one of the countries with high growth rate in 2018 and 2019.

Country economy
According to Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS), the GDP growth stood at 7.28 percent in FY2016-17 and 7.86 
percent in FY2017-18. GDP at current market prices stood at Tk.22,504,790 million in FY2017-18, up by 13.90 percent 
of the previous fiscal year. However, In the light of slowdown in global economy and other factors like increase in CPI 
rate, Bangladesh Bank has projected a growth rate for FY 2019 at 7.8%. Total premium volume in USD for Bangladesh 
in 2017 (Life and non-life) stood at USD 1,345 million against USD 1,355 million in 2016, a decrease of 0.74%. Out of
USD 1,345 million Non-life business premium stood in 2017 was USD 371 million and life business stood USD 974 
million. Bangladesh non-life insurance industry has been continuing to be one of the smallest in the world (holding 86th 
position in the world ranking). The growth of Non-life insurance companies’ premium income in 2017 was 8.1 percent, 
as against 4.7% in the previous year. In the non-life insurance sector, 46 private insurers and 1 state-owned corporation 
have earned TK 29,862 million in 2017. 

Insurance industry
The Bangladeshi insurance industry is highly competitive. Key factors affecting the performance of the industry during 
the review period included fierce competition in the non-life segment, the rising market shares of private insurance 
companies, and the increasing level of risk being retained by insurers. The gross premium income of the country in 
non-life insurance in the private sector was around Tk.30,000 million in 2018 indicating a little higher growth.

Insurance business in 2018
BNICL earned a gross premium income of Tk.501.91 million as against Tk.476.73 Million in 2017, showing an increase 
of 5.28 percent.  

DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS
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Product-wise performance 
Fire Insurance Business
The Company wrote direct fire insurance business with a gross premium income of Tk. 195.02 million against Tk. 
136.11 million in 2017. The Company earned an underwriting profit of Tk. 10.51 million from its fire insurance business 
against Tk. 4.89 million in 2017.

Marine Insurance Business
The gross premium income from underwriting of marine insurance was Tk.131.81 million in 2018 and Tk. 134.11 million 
in 2017. The Company earned an underwriting profit of Tk. 31.98 million in 2018 and Tk. 30.86 million in 2017.  

Motor Insurance Business
In motor insurance segment, the gross premium income Tk.85.63 million and underwriting profit of Tk. 6.96 million in 
2018.

Miscellaneous Insurance Business
Gross Premium income from miscellaneous  insurance business Tk.89.45 million and underwriting profit of Tk. 13.49 
million in the year 2018.

Income from Investment
Interest income derived from banks and non-banking financial institutions was Tk.63.89 million and Tk.57.62 million 
was in 2017. The dividend income increased to Tk.2.53 million from Tk.2.06 million in 2017.

Financial Results & Appropriation
We are pleased to report that due to effective underwriting, marketing, appropriate portfolio issue, technically sound 
reinsurance arrangements and effective monitoring, the company has been able to achieve favorable financial results 
in 2018. Taking into consideration of the company’s financial needs and the shareholder’s short as well as long term 
interests, the board of directors recommends the appropriation of after-tax profit for the 2018 in the following manner:

a) The Un-appropriated Profit Carry forward from previous Year 2017   8,03,23,632

b)  The Un-appropriated Profit for Current Year 2018  1,15,896,311

c) Deferred Tax Income  4,74,112 

d) Total Fund Available for Appropriation  1,96,694,055

i) Reserve for Exceptional Losses  37,202,364

ii) Provision for Taxes  29,290,107

iii) Dividend Paid  44,250,000

iv) Balance transferred to retained earnings  85,951,583

Cost of goods sold and profit margin
The company is a non-life insurance company and hence cost of goods sold and gross profit margin concept is not 
appropriate for the company. Rather profit of the company is main concerned for the company hence, in the year 2018 
the company earned profit of Tk.117,356,032 only. 

Claim
The company settled claim of Tk.172.36 million indicating 9.98% growth comparing with the year 2017, after recovery 
from the reinsurance during the year 2018. The company always used to attach due importance on quick settlement of 
claims of the valued clients.

Continuity of any extra-ordinary gain or loss
In the year 2018 there was no extra ordinary activities and hence there was no continuation of extra ordinary gain or 
loss in the current year.
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Basis of related party transaction
According to the International  Accounting Standard-24 “Related Party Disclosures” related party disclosure was made 
in note # 45 of the financial statements.

Remuneration to directors including independent directors
Directors are not empowered to take any remuneration other than attendance fee. In line with that no remuneration 
except meeting attendance fee has been given to any director in the year 2018. Till date no remuneration was also 
given to any independent director except the attendance fee.

Corporate and financial reporting framework
In conformity of the BSEC Notification No.BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 3, 2018; the directors 
confirm compliance with the financial reporting framework for the following:

 The financial statements prepared by the management of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited present
 fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

 Proper books of account of the issuer company have been maintained.

 Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and that 
 the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

 International Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Bangladesh
 along with Bangladesh Accounting Standards and Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards have been followed
 in preparation of the financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed.

 The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

 There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Significant deviations from the last year’s operating result
The company earned profit of Tk.117.36 million in the year 2018. In the year 2017, the company earned profit of 
Tk.94.40 million. The company earns higher profit comparing with the last year can say that significant profit increased 
during the period under review.

Key operating and financial data
Key operating and financial data of preceding five years is included in this annual report.

Dividend
For the year 2018 the Board of Directors recommends 12 percent cash dividend hence there is no reason for non decla-
ration of dividend.

Credit Rating
Credit Rating of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited was carried out by Emerging Credit Ltd for the year 
2018-2019. After assessment they provide “Long Term: A A- and Short Term: ST-2” which increase more reliability of 
the company to the stakeholders. Apart from the above rating agency also highlighted the following salient feature of 
the Company:

 Steady increase in gross premium income.

 Capacity to meet claim demand of policy holder.

 Decrease in claim due to quality Underwriting expertise.

 Strong reserve base.

 Introduction Corporate governance issues and guidance for Compliance with regulation of IDRA & BSEC.

Utilization of IPO proceeds
In 2016 the company invested Tk.172,466,000 only in FDR and meet up the IPO expenses of Tk. 4,534,000 only as per 
use of IPO proceeds published in the Prospectus.
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Risk Management
The company is always aware of the risk factors inherent in the industry. To keep the risks at an acceptable level, the 
company identifies, monitors and reviews the risks inherent in the business from time to time, continuous to update data 
base for information and takes corrective and or preventive measure to safeguard the stakeholders interest.

Director’s meeting
During the year 2018 Five board meetings were held. The attendance in the board meetings by each director is 
included with this annual report.

Shareholding pattern
According to the clause 1.5 (xxiii) of the BSEC’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006 -158/207/Admin/80 dated June 
3, 2018 shareholding pattern is included corporate governance guideline. 

Directors’ appointment and re-appointment
In every year other than first year, one-third of the Directors for the time being or if their number is not three or multiples 
of three then the number nearest to one-third are required to retire from office. Till date, number of Directors in the 
Company’s Board is 20 and hence four Directors will retire on 26 June 2019 from their office. In line with that, from 
Group-A, Md. Abdul Rouf, Mrs.Tahmina Binthe Mostafa , Mrs.Tanjima Binthe Mostafa and Mr.Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa 
will retire on 26 June 2019 and all of them are eligible for re-election. Besides, from Group-B, Md.Hasan Rajib Prodhan 
and Mohammad Naim Akter will also retire on 26 June 2019 and all of them are eligible for re-election Detail disclosure 
in this regard is stated under the heading of brief profile of Directors in the annual report.

Auditors
As per BSEC guidelines, the existing auditors of the Company, M/S. A. Hoque & Co., Chartered Accountants, have 
consented to continue audit and being eligible, qualify for reappointment under section 210 (3) of the Companies Act, 
1994. Audit fee will be Tk. 90,000 only. Now the appointment is placed before the 23rd Annual General Meeting for 
shareholders approval.

In 22nd Annual General Meeting the appointed auditor of the company M/S Masih Muhith Haque & Co. Chartered 
Accountants did not perform their duty due to unavoidable circumstance. In place of that the Board of Directors 
appointed M/S A. Haque & Co. Chartered Accountants as per previous approval fee.

Acknowledgement
We gratefully acknowledge valuable help and advices from the esteemed shareholders at the AGM, Well-wishers, the 
Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority (IDRA), Bangladesh Insurance Association, Bangladesh Insurance 
Academy, our Co-insurers and Re-insurers, Registered of Joint Stock Companies, Ministry of Finance, Commercial 
Banks and Financial Institutions, Bangladesh Bank, Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited.

We also like to thank the members of our staffs for their devotion, drive and skill in maintaining the companies high 
standard of business ethics.

Abdul Baset Majumder
Chairman
18 April 2019
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cwiPvjK gÛjxi cÖwZ‡e`b 

wcÖq ‡kqvi‡nvìvie„›`:

evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡U‡Wi cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i cÿ †_‡K 31‡k wW‡m¤^i 2018Bs Zvwi‡Li mgvß eQ‡ii wbixwÿZ 

Avw_©K weeibx, evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b Ges AwWUim wi‡c©vU ‡kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i we‡ePbv I Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ Dc¯’vcb Ki‡Z †c‡i Avgiv Lye 

Avbw›`Z| cvkvcvwk cl©` Dcw¯’Z mKj ‡kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i ¯^vMZ Rvbvq, hviv 23Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Dcw¯’Z n‡q‡Qb Ges GB 

mfv‡K Av‡jvwKZ K‡i‡Qb Ges cÖPzi mvnm RywM‡q‡Qb hv‡Z Avgiv AvMvgx w`b ¸‡jv‡Z K‡Vvi cwikÖ‡gi gva¨‡g †Kv¤úvbxi Rb¨ fv‡jv 

djvdj e‡q Avb‡Z cvwi|

2018Bs mvj Ry‡o †Kv¤úvbxi mv‡_ _vKvi Rb¨ Dcw¯’Z m¯§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i cl©` Gi cÿ †_‡K ab¨ev` Ávcb KiwQ Ges web‡qi 

mv‡_ AeMZ KiwQ †h 2018Bs mv‡j †Kv¤úvbx 117,356,032 UvKv gybvdv AR©b K‡i Ges BwcGm AR©b K‡i 2.00 UvKv| cl©` 2018Bs 

mv‡ji Rb¨ 12% bM` jf¨vsk cÖ`v‡bi mycvwik Ki‡Z †c‡i Avbw›`Z| 

wek¦ A_©bxwZ:

AvšÍ©RvwZK gy`ªv Znwej Z_¨ Abyhvqx ‰ewk¦K A_©‰bwZK cÖe„w× `ye©j n‡q‡Q cÖavbZ gvwK©b hy³ivóª  KZ…K Ae¨vnZ fv‡e BD‡ivc, Pxb I 

Ab¨vb¨ g~j A_©bxwZi Dci µgvMZ ïé e„w×i Kvi‡b| Gai‡bi evwbR¨ msKU QvovI Px‡bi g›`v A_©bxwZ, BREXIT Pzw³ wb‡q GKai‡bi 

AwbðqZv Ges j¨vwUb Av‡gwiKvi Av_©-ivR‰bwZK Aw¯’wZkxjZv, meai‡bi A_©‰bwZK Dbœqb wb¤œgyLx avivq weivRgvb| eZ©gv‡b ˆewk¦K 

A_©‰bwZK cÖe„w× jÿ¨gvÎv 2018 mv‡j 3.7%, 2019 mv‡j 3.5% Ges 2020 mv‡j 3.6% hv DbœZ A_©bxwZi Rb¨ cÖe„w× n‡e 2%| 

D`xqgvb evRvi Ges Dbœqbkxj †`‡ki Rb¨ 2019 Ges 2020 mv‡ji Rb¨ 4.5% cÖe„w× BwZg‡a¨ GwWwe Dbœqbkxj Gwkqvb †`k ¸‡jvi 

Rb¨ 2018 mv‡j 6% Ges 2019 mv‡j 5.8% Gi c~e©vfvm †`qv n‡q‡Q| m¤¢ve¨ cÖe„w× 7% Ges 7.2% wba©vib K‡i evsjv‡`k 2018 

Ges 2019 mv‡j D”P cÖe„w×i †`‡ki ZvwjKvq ¯’vb K‡i wb‡e|

evsjv‡`‡ki A_©bxwZ:

evsjv‡`k cwimsL¨vb ey¨‡iv Gi Z_¨g‡Z 2016-2017 Ges 2017-2018 A_© eQ‡i eZ©gvb wRwWwc cÖe„w× h_vµ‡g 7.28% I 7.86%| 

wRwWwc cªe„w× eZ©gvb 2017-2018 A_© eQ‡i 22,504,790 wgwjqb UvKv hv c~e©eZx© A_© eQ‡ii †P‡q 13.90% †ekx| ˆewk¦K A_©bxwZi 

wb¤œg~Lx aviv m‡Z¡I Ges Ab¨vb¨ welqvw` †hgb wmwcAvB nvi, evsjv‡`k e¨vsK 2019 A_© eQ‡i m¤¢e¨ 7.8% wba©vib K‡i‡Q| 2017 mv‡j 

†gvU wcÖwgqvg (jvBd Ges bb-jvBd) BDGmwW 1,345 wgwjqb Wjvi hv 2016 mv‡j wQj BDGmwW 1,355 wgwjqb Wjvi wQj| hv c~e©eZx 

eQ‡ii †P‡q 0.74% n«vm n‡q‡Q| 2017 mv‡j BDGmwW 1,345 Wjvi Gi g‡a¨ 371 wgwjqb bb-jvBd wcÖwgqvg Ges 974 wgwjqb jvBd 

wcÖwgqvg| we‡k¦i g‡a¨ evsjv‡`‡ki bb-jvBd BÝy¨‡iÝ BÛvw÷ªR Gi Ae¯’vb 86Zg| 2017 mv‡j bb-jvBd BÝy¨‡iÝ wcÖwgqvg Avq 4.1% 

hv Av‡Mi eQi wQj 4.7%| eZ©gv‡b 46wU cÖvB‡fU bb-jvBd BÝy¨‡iÝ Ges 1wU ivóxq gvwjKvbvaxb K‡c©v‡ikb mw¤§wjZ fv‡e  2017 

mv‡j 29,862 wgwjqb UvKv wcÖwgqvg Avq K‡i‡Q| 

exgv wkí:

evsjv‡`‡ki exgv wkí LyeB cÖwZ‡hvwMZvg~jK| 2018Bs mv‡ji BÝy¨‡iÝ e¨emv‡qi cÖwZ‡hvMxZvq, bb-jvBd e¨emv‡qi `ªæZMvgx 

cÖwZ‡hvwMZv, gv‡K©U †kqv‡ii cÖe„w×‡Z †emiKvix exgv †Kv¤úvbxi AwZwi³ AšÍ©f‚w³ Ges AwZwi³ SzuwK e„w× wQj g~j Dcv`vb| 2018Bs 

mv‡j †`‡ki †emiKvix bb-jvBd exgv Lv‡Z †gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq wQj cÖvq 30,000 wgwjqb UvKv hv mvgvb¨ cwigvb cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i|

2018Bs mv‡ji exgv e¨emv:

evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡U‡Wi 2018Bs mv‡ji †gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq wQj 501.91 wgwjqb UvKv Gi wecixZ 2017Bs 

mv‡j †gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq wQj 476.73 wgwjqb UvKv|MZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 5.28 kZvsk cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i|

cb¨ wfw³K e¨emvwqK mdjZv

AwMœ exgv e¨emv:

‡Kv¤úvbx cÖZ¨ÿ AwMœ exgv e¨emv †_‡K 2018Bs mv‡j †gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq wQj 195.02 wgwjqb UvKv Gi wecix‡Z 2017Bs mv‡j Avq 

wQj 136.11 wgwjqb UvKv| †Kv¤úvbx AwMœ exgv e¨emv †_‡K 2018Bs mv‡j 10.51 wgwjqb UvKv AewjLb gybvdv AR©b K‡i Gi wecix‡Z 

2017Bs mv‡j GB Avq wQj 4.89 wgwjqb UvKv|
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‡bŠ exgv e¨emv:

‡bŠ exgv e¨emv †_‡K †Kv¤úvbxi †gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq 2018Bs mv‡j wQj 131.81 wgwjqb UvKv Ges 2017Bs mv‡j wQj 134.11 wgwjqb 

UvKv| †Kv¤úvbx ‡bŠ exgv e¨emv †_‡K 2018Bs mv‡j AewjLb gybvdv wQj 31.98 wgwjqb UvKv Ges 2017Bs mv‡j wQj 30.86 wgwjqb 

UvKv|

‡gvUi exgv e¨emv:

‡gvUi exgv e¨emv †_‡K 2018Bs mv‡j †gvU Avq n‡q‡Q 85.63 wgwjqb UvKv, ‡gvUi exgv e¨emv †_‡K 2018Bs mv‡j jvf n‡q‡Q 6.96 

wgwjqb UvKv|

wewea exgv e¨emv:

wewea exgv e¨emv †_‡K 2018Bs mv‡j †gvU Avq n‡q‡Q 89.45 wgwjqb UvKv| wewea exgv e¨emv †_‡K 2018Bs mv‡j jvf n‡q‡Q 13.49 

wgwjqb UvKv| 

wewb‡qvM †_‡K Avq:

wewfbœ e¨vsK I Avw_©K cÖwZôv‡b Mw”QZ wewb‡qvM †_‡K 2018Bs mv‡ji gybvdv wQj 63.89 wgwjqb UvKv Ges Zv 2017Bs mv‡j wQj 

57.62 wgwjqb UvKv| wWwf‡W›U Lv‡Z Avq e„w× cvq 2.53 wgwjqb hv 2017 mv‡j wQj 2.06 wgwjqb|

e›Ub‡hvM¨ gybvdv:

Avgiv AZ¨šÍ Avb‡›`i mv‡_ Rvbvw”Q ‡h, Kvh©‡cv‡hvMx AewjLb, wecYb Ges h_vh_ †cvU©‡dvwjI Bmy¨ I wbLyZ cybt-exgv cÖwµqvi AbymiY 

Kivi cvkvcwk Kvh©Ki Z`viwKi gva¨‡g Avgiv 2018 mv‡j Kvw•LZ Avw_©K mvdj¨ AR©b Ki‡Z mÿg n‡qwQ| †Kv¤úvbxi Avw_©K w`K 

we‡ePbv K‡i I ‡kqvi ‡nvìvi‡`i ¯^v_© msiÿ‡Y `xN©‡gqv`x cwiKíbvi Av‡jv‡K cwiPvjKe„›` 2018 mv‡j U¨v· cieZ©x wb¤œwjwLZ 

mycvwik mg~n cÖ`vb K‡i‡Qb:

a) The Un-appropriated Profit Carry forward from previous Year 2017   8,03,23,632

b)  The Un-appropriated Profit for Current Year 2018  1,15,896,311

c) Deferred Tax Income  4,74,112 

d) Total Fund Available for Appropriation  1,96,694,055

i) Reserve for Exceptional Losses  37,202,364

ii) Provision for Taxes  29,290,107

iii) Dividend Paid  44,250,000

iv) Balance transferred to retained earnings  85,951,583 

Kó Ae ¸Wm †mvì Ges gybvdv AR©b:

evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW GKwU bb-jvBd BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx †h Kvi‡b Kó Ae ¸Wm †mvì G‡ÿ‡G cÖ‡hv‡R¨ bq| 

Ab¨ w`‡K †Kv¤úvbxi gybvdv AR©b we‡kl A_© enb K‡iGes 2018Bs mv‡j 117,356,032 UvKv gybvdv AR©b K‡i|

exgv `vex:

2018Bs mv‡j †Kv¤úvbx ‡bU 172.36 wgwjqb UvKvi exgv ̀ vwe wb®úwZ K‡i‡Q hv MZ eQ‡ii Z‚jbvq 9.98% cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i| m¤§vwbZ 

MªvnK‡`i `vwe c~i‡b †Kv¤úvbx me©`vB AZ¨šÍ AvšÍwiK I hZœkxj|

A¯^vfvweK nVvr gybvdv AR©b ev ÿwZ:

2018Bs mv‡j Giæc †Kv‡bv nVvr gybvdv AR©b ev ÿwZ nqwb|

‡ewmm Ae wi‡jwUf cvwU© Uªvb‡RKkb:

evsjv‡`k GKvDbwUs ÷vÛvW© - 24 Òwi‡jwUf cvwU© wWm‡KøvRvi AbyhvqxÓ 45 G wi‡jwUW cvwU© Uªvb‡RKkb cÖ`k©b Kiv n‡q‡Q|

cwiPvjK‡`i m¤§vbx (¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjKmn):

cwiPvjKMb cl©` wgwUs Gi Dcw¯’wZi Rb¨ m¤§vbx e¨vZxZ Ab¨ †Kvb cÖKvi †eZb ev m¤§vbx fvZv †`qv nq bv| †m Abyhvqx 2018Bs mv‡j 

cl©` wgwUs m¤§vbx e¨vZxZ Ab¨ †Kvb cÖKvi †eZb ev m¤§vbx ‡Kv‡bv cwiPvjK ev ¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK‡K cÖ`vb Kiv nqwb|
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K‡c©v‡iU Ges Avw_©K cªwZ‡e`b:

weGmBwm †bvwUwd‡Kkb # GmBwm/ wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006-158/207/GWwgb/80 ZvwiL 03 Ryb 2018 Abyhvqx cl©` Avw_©K 

cªwZ‡e`‡bi †ÿ‡Î wb‡gv³ welq¸‡jv cwicvjb weavq wbwðZ K‡ib t

 evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvwbi g¨v‡bR‡g›U KwgwU Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b ‰Zwi K‡i‡Q Ges G cÖwZ‡e`b mg~n †Kv¤úvbxi Avw_©K  

 Ae¯’v, mgvß eQ‡ii Kvh©µ‡gi djvdj Ges bM` A_© cÖev‡ni myôz cÖwZdjb K‡i|

 ‡Kv¤úvbxi wnmve ewnmg~n mwVKfv‡e msiwÿZ n‡q‡Q|

 Avw_©K weeibxmg~n ˆZwi‡Z mwVK wnmve bxwZgvjvmg~n h_vh_fv‡e cÖ‡qvM Kiv n‡q‡Q|

 evsjv‡`‡k cª‡hvR¨ AvšÍR©vwZK wnmvegvb Abyhvqx Avw_©K weeibxmg~n cÖ¯ÍyZ Kiv n‡q‡Q|

 Af¨šÍixb wbqš¿b e¨e¯’v my`„pfv‡e cÖbxZ Ges hvi cÖ‡qvM Ges ch©‡eÿb AZxe Kvh©Ki|

 Pjgvb cÖwZôvb  wnmv‡e ‡Kv¤úvbxi ¯^ÿgZvq we›`ygvÎ †Kvb m‡›`n †bB|

MZ eQ‡ii gybvdvi Zzjbvg~jK cv_©K¨:

‡Kv¤úvbx 2018Bs mv‡j 117.36 wgwjqb UvKv gybvdv AR©b K‡i| 2017Bs mv‡j gybvdv AR©b K‡i 94.40 wgwjqb UvKv| GwU cÖwZqgvb 

nq †h, 2017Bs mv‡ji Zzjbvq 2018Bs mv‡j Zzjbvg~jK gybvdv e„w× †c‡q‡Q|

Avw_©K Z_¨:

MZ cuvP eQ‡ii Avw_©K Z_¨ GB evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b mshy³ Kiv n‡q‡Q|

jf¨vsk:

cwiPvjbv cl©` 2018Bs mv‡ji Rb¨ 12 kZvsk jf¨vsk †Nvlbv K‡i‡Q| myZivs G eQ‡ii Rb¨ jf¨vsk †Nvlbv nqwb Giæc wKQz eY©bvi 

cÖ‡qvRb †bB|

‡µwWU †iwUs:

evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡U‡Wi 2018-2019Bs mv‡ji ‡µwWU †iwUs K‡i BgviwRs ‡µwWU †iwUs wjwg‡UW Ges Zv‡`i 

†iwUs Abyhvqx †Kv¤úvbx GG- †iwUs †c‡q‡Q| GB †iwUs ‡Kv¤úvbxi m‡šÍvlRbK Avw_©K e¨e¯’vcbv, Avw_©K ¯^”QjZv, Zvi‡j¨i cÖevn BZ¨vw` 

cÖ`©kb K‡i|

AvB.wc.I- Gi A_© e¨e¯’vcbv:

2016 mv‡j ‡Kv¤úvbx AvB.wc.I. cÖm‡cKUv‡mi eb©bv Abyhvqx 17,24,66,000 UvKv Gd.wW.Avi. wn‡m‡e wewb‡qvM Kiv nq Ges 

45,34,000 UvKv AvB.wc.I- Gi LiP wnmv‡e enb Kiv nq|

SuywK e¨e¯’vcbv:

‡Kv¤úvbx memgq BÝy¨‡iÝ e¨emv‡qi SuywK wb‡q mRvM _v‡K| SuywK‡K mnbxq ch©v‡q ivLvi Rb¨, †Kv¤úvbx memgq SuywK wbimb I ch©‡eÿb 

K‡i Ges †m Abyhvqx Z_¨ msMÖn K‡i Ges †m fv‡e Kg©KvÛ cwiPvjbv K‡i hv‡Z ‡kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i ¯^v_© iÿv cvq|

cl©` wgwUs:

2018Bs mv‡j me©‡gvU cuvPwU cl©` wgwUs AbywôZ nq| †m Abyhvqx cl©` wgwUs G cwiPvjK‡`i Dcw¯’wZi weeib GB evwl©K cªwZ‡e`‡b 

wjwce× Kiv Av‡Q|

‡kqviavib Ae¯’v:

weGmBwm †bvwUwd‡Kkb # GmBwm/wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006/158/207/GWwgb/80 ZvwiL 03 Ryb 2018 Gi K¬R 1.5 (xxiii) Abyhvqx 

†Kv¤úvbxi †kqvi avib Ae¯’v GB evwl©K cªwZ‡e`‡b wjwce× Kiv Av‡Q|

cwiPvjK‡`i wb‡qvM:

cÖ_g eQi e¨ZxZ cieZ©x cÖwZ eQ‡i 1/3 fvM cwiPvjK cl©` n‡Z Aemi MÖnb Ki‡e| eZ©gv‡b †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvj‡Ki msL¨v 20 Rb,

ZvB 4 Rb cwiPvjK 26 Ryb 2019Bs Zvwi‡L Aemi MÖnb Ki‡e| †m Abyhvqx MÖæc ÔGÕ †_‡K Rbve Avãyi iDd,  wg‡mm Zvn&wgbv web‡Z 

†gv¯Ídv, wg‡mm  ZvbwRgv web‡Z †gv¯Ídv Ges Rbve Zvbfxi Avn‡g` †gv¯Ídv 26 Ryb 2019Bs Zvwi‡L Aemi MÖnb Ki‡eb Ges Zviv 

†hvM¨ weavq cybivq wbe©vwPZ nIqvi AwaKvi iv‡Lb|
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cvkvcvwk, MÖæc ÔweÕ n‡Z Rbve †gv: nvmvb ivRxe cÖavb Ges †gv: bvCg Av³vi 26 Ryb 2019Bs Zvwi‡L Aemi MÖnb Ki‡eb Ges Zviv 

†hvM¨ weavq cybivq wbe©vwPZ nevi AwaKvi iv‡Lb|

GB g‡g© mKj cwiPvjK‡`i Rxeb e„ËvšÍ GB evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi mv‡_ mshy³ Kiv n‡q‡Q|

AwWUi wb‡qvM:

evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgk‡bi wb‡`©kbv Abyqvqx eZ©gvb AwWUi †gmvm© G. nK GÛ †Kvs PvU©vW GKvD›U‡U›Um 2019Bs 

mv‡ji AwWU Kivi Rb¨ AvMÖn cÖKvk K‡i Ges †hvM¨ weavq ‡Kv¤úvwb AvBb 1994 Gi 210 (3) †gvZv‡eK c~Y©wb‡qv‡Mi ‡hvM¨Zv iv‡L|  

AwWU wd n‡e 90,000 UvKv gvÎ| hv 23Zg evwl©K mvavib mfvq †kqvi †nvìvi‡`i Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ †ck Kiv n‡jv|

22Zg evwl©K mvavib mfvq wb‡qvM cÖvß AwWUi †gmvm© gwmn& gywnZ nK GÛ †Kvs Pv©UvW© GKvD›Uv›Um 2018Bs mv‡ji Rb¨ AwWUi wnmv‡e 

wb‡qvM cÖvß n‡jI Awbevh© KvibemZ wbixÿv Kvh©µg cwiPvjbvq AcviMZv cÖKvk K‡ib| cwiPvjbv cl©` Zvi ̄ ’‡j AwWUi wnmv‡e †gmvm© 

G.nK GÛ †Kvs Pv©UvW© GKvD›Uv›Um& †K c~‡e©i wba©vwiZ wd Abyhvqx wb‡qvM cÖ`vb K‡ib|

K…ZÁZv ¯^xKvi:

mK‡ji mn‡hvMxZv Ges my-civg‡k©i Rb¨ Avgiv K…ZÁZv cÖKvk Kwi| Avgv‡`i Dcw¯’Z m¤§vwbZ †kqvi †nvìvi e„›`, ïfvbya¨vqx, exgv

Dbœqb I wbqš¿b KZ…©cÿ, evsjv‡`k BÝy¨‡iÝ GKv‡Wgx, †iwRóªvi Ae R‡q›U ÷K †Kv¤úvbxR GÛ dvgm©, A_© gš¿Yvjq, evwbwR¨K e¨vsK 

Ges Avw_©K cÖwZôvb, evsjv‡`k e¨vsK, evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb, XvKv ÷K G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW Ges wPUvMvs ÷K 

G·‡PÄ wjwg‡UW †K K…ZÁZv RvbvB|

Avgiv Av‡iv K…ZÁZv RvbvB Avgv‡`i mKj Kg©KZ©v I Kg©Pvix‡`i hv‡`i `ÿZv I Kg©Kv‡Ûi gva¨‡g †Kv¤úvbx Zvi Ae ’̄vb a‡i †i‡L‡Q|

ab¨ev`v‡šÍ

cwiPvjK gÛjxi c‡ÿ

(Ave`yj ev‡mZ gRyg`vi)

‡Pqvig¨vb
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Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

Honorable shareholders – Assalamu Alaikum

This is my immense pleasure to inform you that being with the Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited as a 
Chief Executive Officer I have completed the year 2018 successfully overcoming many business obstacles. Besides, I 
convey my warm wishes to all the shareholders presences in the 23rd Annual General Meeting from the part of the 
employees of the company and inform you that the board recommends 12 percent cash dividend for the year 2018 for 
your continuous trust, encouragement and support. We hope that in coming year we can put more profits in the 
accounts of the company.

You know that Non-Life insurance industry has traditional insurance services, with them; companies are trying to cover 
business throughout the country. Currently, we are trying to add more features to our services that may attract more 
clients in coming years. We believe that with new service’s dimension, clients will feel more comfort with us.

In Competition with other companies, we have covered a large number of clients in the year 2018 comparing with the 
year 2017. Many clients were also showed their interest to grow with us by covering their risks with our products. Thus 
after listing with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited, our reliability in the insurance 
market is increased. 

Now we look forward to improving our branding image in the market. As a result, we launched our new corporate logo 
which looks so eye catching and indicate modern corporate style. We begin to changing; new changes will come in our 
business.    

Having overcome many challenges, your company able to put some profit of Tk.11,73,56,032.00 only and the Board of 
Directors recommended 12 % cash dividend for the year 2018. If we always receive your faith and support, we hope 
that in future we can also be able to declare more dividends. 

In 2018 our Gross premium income and net premium income stood at Tk. 501.91 million and Tk.372.03 million, repre-
senting a growth of 5.28 % and (0.41)% respectively over the previous year. Total Assets of the company at stood 
1326.38 million as at 31 December 2018 showing a growth of 7.31 % comparing with the last year.

Our credit rating status is AA- (pronounced as double AA minus) by Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL) which 
reflects our good financial strength and claim paying ability.

On the other hand, we believe that strong internal database system is very much essential for continuous growth of the 
company. Keeping that in mind, we were established branch wise computer network system with software that can 
provide information promptly as per business requirement. Continuous development in IT infrastructures is also one of 
our core objectives.

I express my profound gratitude to the Board of Directors for their active support and proper guidance. 

Finally, on behalf of the management of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited, would like to express my 
heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders/stakeholders, Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority (IDRA), Bangladesh 
Bank, Bangladesh Insurance Association, Bangladesh Insurance Academy, Sadharan Bima Corporation, Bangladesh 
Securities & Exchange Commission, Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited, our co-insurers and re-insurers 
for the support they have been rendering to us for a long time.    

Allah Hafez

Md. Sana Ullah
Chief Executive Officer
18 April 2019
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g~L¨ wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©v g‡nv`‡qi e³e¨

wemwgjøvwn&i ivngvwbi ivwng

m¤§vwbZ †kqvi‡nvìvi e„›` - Avmmvjvgy AvjvBKzg

evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbxi wjwg‡UW Gi 23Zg evwl©K mvavib mfvq Avwg Avb‡›`i mv‡_ Rvbvw”Q †h, 2018 mvj Avgiv 

mvd‡j¨i mv‡_ AwZµg K‡iwQ| †mB mv‡_ Avwg Kg©KZ©v I Kg©Pvix‡`i cÿ n‡Z Dcw¯’Z mKj m¤§vwbZ †kqvi ‡nvìvi‡`i ï‡f”Qv 

Rvbvw”Q| cl©` 2018 mv‡ji Rb¨ 12 kZvsk bM` jfvsk cÖ`v‡bi mycvwik K‡i‡Q hv m¤¢e n‡q‡Q Avcbv‡`i Av¯’v I mn‡hvwMZvi R‡b¨| 

Avgiv wek¦vm Kwi †h AvMvgx w`b¸wj‡Z Avgiv Av‡iv †ewk gybvdv AR©b Ki‡Z cvie|

Avcbviv Rv‡bb †h bb-jvBd BÝy¨‡iÝ e¨emvq GL‡bv cÖPwjZ exgv †mev cÖ`v‡bi gva¨‡g †`ke¨vcx exgv e¨emv cwiPvjbv Ki‡Q| eZ©gv‡b 

Avgiv, Avgv‡`i †mev¸‡jv‡Z bZzb gvÎv ms‡hvRb Kivi †Póv KiwQ hv Av‡iv AwaK cwigv‡Y MÖvnK‡`i AvKl©b Ki‡e| Avgiv wek¦vm Kwi 

†h, GB bZzb †mevi gva¨‡g MÖvnKMY Av‡iv AwaK ¯^v”Q›` †eva Ki‡e|

cÖwZ‡hvMxZvg~jK exgv evRv‡i 2017 mv‡ji Zzjbvq 2018 mv‡j Avgiv Av‡iv AwaK MÖvnK †mev cÖ`vb K‡iwQ| A‡bK bZzb MÖvnK Avgv‡`i 

exgv †mevi gva¨‡g SuywK wb‡ivm‡bi Rb¨ AvMÖn cÖKvk K‡i‡Q| cvkvcvwk XvKv ÷K GK&ª‡PÄ wjwg‡UW Ges wPUvMs ÷K GKª‡PÄ wjwg‡U‡Wi 

mv‡_ ZvwjKv fzzw³ nIqvi d‡j e¨emv‡q Avgv‡`i Dci MÖvnK‡`i Av¯’v A‡bK †e‡o‡Q|

GLb Avgiv Avgv‡`i mybvg Av‡iv DbœZ Kivi w`‡K we‡kl fv‡e bRi w`‡qwQ| ZviB dj ¯^iƒc Avgiv Avgv‡`i  †Kv¤úvbxi bZzb K‡c©v‡iU 

†jv‡Mv Gi cÖPjY K‡iwQ hv †`L‡Z A‡bK `„wó b›`b I AvaywbK| Avgiv cwieZ©b ïiæ K‡iwQ, cwieZ©b Avm‡Q Avgv‡`i e¨emv‡qi 

cwiwa‡Z|

A‡bK euvav wecwË cvi K‡i †Kv¤úvbx 2018 mv‡j 11,73,56,032.00 UvKv gybvdv AR©b K‡i‡Q, †mB mv‡_ cl©` 12% bM` jf¨vsk 

†NvlYv K‡i‡Q| Avgiv hw` me mgq Avcbv‡`i Av¯’v I mn‡hvwMZv cvB, fwel¨‡ZI Avgiv wbðq Av‡iv †ewk jf¨vsk ‡Nvlbv Ki‡Z 

cvi‡ev| 2018 mv‡j †gvU wcÖwgqvg Avq Ges ‡bU wcÖwgqvg Avq wQj 501.91 wgwjqb UvKv Ges 372.03 wgwjqb UvKv hv wKbv GKvav‡i 

5.28% Ges (0.41)% cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i| 2018 mv‡j †gvU m¤úwËi cwigvY wQj 1,326.38 wgwjqb UvKv hv weMZ eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 

7.31% cÖe„w× cÖ`k©b K‡i|

‡Kv¤úvbxi †µwWU †iwUs Ae¯’vb nj ÒGG-Ó, hv †Kv¤úvbxi fv‡jv Avw_©K wfwË Ges exgv `vex cÖ`v‡bi AwaK ¯^ÿgZv cÖKvk K‡i|

Ab¨w`‡K, Avgiv wek¦vm Kwi †h, †Kv¤úvbxi MwZgq Dbœq‡bi Rb¨ cÖ‡qvRb GKwU k³ Af¨šÍixY Z_¨ fvÛvi, †m w`K we‡ePbv K‡i, Avgiv 

mKj kvLv Awdm¸‡jv‡K AbjvBb †bUIqvK© wm‡÷g Gi AvIZvq G‡bwQ| hvi d‡j GLb AwZ mn‡R †h †Kv‡bv e¨emvwqK Z_¨ cvIqv 

m¤¢e n‡”Q|

Avwg ab¨ev` RvbvB evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi cl©`‡K, Zv‡`i me©`v mn‡hvwMZv Ges cÖ‡qvRbxq w`K wb‡`©kbv 

cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨| 

me©‡k‡l evsjv‡`k b¨vkbvj BÝy¨‡iÝ †Kv¤úvbx wjwg‡UW Gi e¨e¯’vcbv KZ…©cÿ cÿ †_‡K AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` RvbvB mKj †kqvi‡nvìvi/ 

†÷K †nvìvi, exgv Dbœqb I wbqš¿Y KZ…©cÿ (AvBwWAviG), evsjv‡`k e¨vsK,evsjv‡`k BÝy¨‡iÝ G‡mvwm‡qmÝ, evsjv‡`k BÝy¨‡iÝ 

GKv‡Wwg, mvaviY exgv K‡c©v‡ikb, evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ GK&ª‡PÄ Kwgkb, XvKv I wPUvMs ÷K GK&ª‡PÄ wjwg‡UW, †iwR÷ªvi Ae 

R‡q›U ÷K †Kv¤úvbxR GÛ dvg©m †K hv‡`i mvwe©K mn‡hvwMZvi Rb¨ Avgiv Avgv‡`i GB MšÍ‡e¨ †cuŠQv‡Z †c‡iwQ|

Avjøvn nv‡dR

‡gvt mvbv Djøvn

g~L¨ wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©v

18 GwcÖj 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate governance is the mechanisms, processes and relations by which corporations are controlled and directed. 
Governance structures and principles identify the distribution of rights and responsibilities among different participants 
in the corporation such as the board of directors, managers, shareholders, creditors, auditors, regulators, and other 
stakeholders. It also includes the rules and procedures for making decisions in corporate affairs. Corporate governance 
includes the processes through which company’s objectives are set and pursued in the context of the social, regulatory 
and market environment. Governance mechanisms include monitoring the actions, policies, practices, and decisions of 
corporations, their agents, and affected stakeholders. Corporate governance practices are affected by attempts to align 
the interests of stakeholders. 

Compliance of corporate governance
Pursuant to BSEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018, the Board of Directors 
of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited is responsible to company’s shareholders for the policies and their 
implementation, activities regarding the effective corporate governance practices in the company. Implementation and 
improvement in the corporate governance is a continuous process. Keeping that in mind the Board is marching ahead 
with the formulation and implementation of clear structure and accountabilities supported by well understandable 
policies in the company. 

Composition of the Board
The Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited composed of 20 Directors where 11 are 
Directors 4 are Independent Directors and 5 are Public Directors having highly professionalism in insurance area and 
other also. A brief profile of the directors is also presented in this annual report. The Board also considers that its 
composition carries a suitable sense of equilibrium of experience and expertise in following the corporate governance 
in the company.  

Responsibilities of the Board
The board of directors is appointed to act on behalf of the shareholders to run the day to day affairs of the business. 
The boards are directly accountable to the shareholders and each year the company will hold an annual general meeting 
(AGM) at which the directors must provide a report to shareholders on the performance of the company, what its future 
plans and strategies are and also submit themselves for re-election to the board.

The objects of the company are defined in the Memorandum of Association and regulations are laid out in the Articles 
of Association.

The board of directors' key purpose is to ensure the company's prosperity by collectively directing the company's 
affairs, whilst meeting the appropriate interests of its shareholders and stakeholders. In addition to business and 
financial issues, boards of directors must deal with challenges and issues relating to corporate governance, corporate 
social responsibility and corporate ethics. Thus the responsibilities of the BNICL are as follows:

 Determination of strategic mission/vision of the company.

 Fixation of business goal, growth and excellence on annual basis.

 Establish, observe and evaluate the policies, planning, management performance criteria.

 Discussion regarding change/extension/modification/up-to-date of policies.

 Regular review of the operational success and failure and point out the reason for failure.

 The delegation of authority has been fully supervised through close supervision in different issues

 Approval and monitor timely completion of all annual budget, capital expenditure and statutory reports of the company.

 Review on regular basis the financial statements, overdue situation, financial performance, provisioning, capital 
adequacy and legal steps against the default cases. 
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 Policy regarding purchase.

 Decision regarding purchase of land, building, vehicle.

 Evaluation of proposal which requires Board approval and/or suggestions.

 Appointment of CEO and increase of remuneration under approval of Bangladesh Bank.

 Ensuring the necessary skills and experience of the senior management team, to perform their responsibilities, 
functions effectively, in the best interest of the company.

 Formation of different committees.

 Review of the reports of external auditor, Bangladesh Bank auditor and audit committee.

 Any other activities as required beneficial for the company.

Board meeting
During the period under review, 5 number of Board meeting held in the head office of the Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited. Meetings are scheduled with consent of the Chairman of the Board and the Company Secretary 
gives the notice of each Board meeting in writing to each Director.

Independent Directors
In compliance with BSEC notification # SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018, four Independent 
Directors are appointed in the Board of directors of the Company. In terms of their experience and education, they are 
highly qualified to perform the duties of Independent Directors. 

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the company are different bodies and their duties & responsibilities 
are separated as mentioned in the Articles of Association of the company. The Chairman is the Non Executive Director 
and Managing Director is performed as Executive Director. The Chairman ensures to comply the policy of the company 
through the Board and the Managing Director confirmed to the Board about the implementation of the policy with the 
support of the management team.

The Executive Committee
The Board of Directors formed the Executive Committee as a subcommittee of the Board to works in line with the 
policies and guidelines approved by the Board and in requirement of smooth operation of the company. The committee 
is composed of as follows: 

Name of Directors Executive Committee
Abdul Baset Majumder Chairman
Mostafa Kamal Member
Beauty Akter  Member
Taif Bin Yousuf Member
Tahmina Binthe Mostafa Member

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises of three members of the Board as follows:

Name of Directors Audit Committee
Mohammed Salim, FCMA  Chairman
Yousuf Ali Member
Tanjima Binthe Mostafa Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination & Remuneration committee comprises of three members of the Board as follows

Name of Directors Nomination & Remuneration committee
Prof. Dr. Mijanur Rahman Chairman
Taif Bin Yousuf Member
Wasikur Rahman Member
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During the year 2018, four meetings were held by the Board Audit Committee. Functions and responsibilities of the 
Committee are as under:

 Examine any matter relating to the financial and other connected to the company.

 Review all internal & external Audit of the company

 Review the efficiency of internal control systems and procedures. 

 Review the quality of Accounting Policies to statutory and regulatory compliance.

 Ensure that a well managed sound financial reporting system is in place within the company

 Review the quarterly financial statement and annual financial statements

 Review all the disclosures are presented in the financial statements etc.

Claim Committee:  
The claim committee is constituted with five members. The committee ensures and monitors the proper management 
of the claim related issues. The committee's main responsibility is to investigate and approve any claim that exceeds 
BDT 0.50 million. The insured are given the loss voucher on the approved claim amount and after everything if finalized, 
cheque is being issued to the insured. The claim are approved and settled on its claim merit with a time limit of 90 days 
upon receiving all of the relevant documents. 

Internal Control Committee: 
The Company's internal committee formed by board with seven members. Entire internal control has  been  monitored  
by  the committee. The committee meets at  least once in a month to  explore the day-to-day development and also 
recommend and record their findings for further decision/approval and its implementation.  Decisions are taken collec-
tively to further enhance the expertise in the best interest of the members in serving the needs of its clients. 

Underwriting Team
The team is responsible for dealing all the issues regarding the underwriting of the risk of specific policyholders. This 
team consists of  headed by Senior General Manager, Head of Reinsurance, Claims, Branch control and Underwriting 
Department), has more than 29 years of experience on underwriting  process. Officers and staffs on underwriting 
department have more than sixteen years of working experience. All of them have participated in elementary course of 
under writing and specialized underwriting

Investment Team
The Investment team comprises five experienced and qualified members. This committee assists the board through 
regular meetings with investment managers in creating, modifying, and monitoring the company investment policy. The 
global financial crisis in 2008 highlighted the Importance of having a dear  investment policy as well as a structured and 
disciplined investment process. It also underlined the need for insurance companies to manage their assets relative to 
their liabilities. The application and success of this activity have been a major differentiate across the insurance industry 
in recent years. 

Appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Head of the Internal Audit and Company Secretary 
In compliance with BSEC notification # SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018, and establish a 
good corporate governance, the company appointed Chief Financial Officer, Head of the Internal Audit and Company 
Secretary. They are separate individual and have respective set forth responsibilities.

Internal Control Framework
The Management recognizes its responsibilities to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the 
company’s position and prospect. The management has accountability for reviewing and approving the effectiveness 
of internal controls operated by the company, including financial and operational compliance.

Delegation of authority
The Board of Directors delegated financial and operational powers to the company management and Executive 
Committee with set of guidelines and limits to ensure effective, prompt and growth oriented business. The management 
of BNICL strongly believes that accurate delegation of authority helped a lot the organization which causes betterment 
of the company.
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Human Resource Management
Non-life (general) insurance Company's success depends on its right, professional skilled human resource towards 
better service and revenue increase. BNICL is practicing proper HR functions through Human   resource planning, 
recruitment, selection, training  &  development.  BNICL knows efficient people can change work environment and 
increase the trust of the people. BNICL periodically reviews salary and benefits of the employees; besides this, the  
company  has also decided to introduce workers profit participation policy.   Like other Insurance company BNICL's also 
having commission based Insurance agent and permanent employee. The company nominates its employees in 
training programs to improve their performance conducted by Bangladesh Insurance  Academy  (BIA),  insurance  firm   
&  others. 

External auditor
According to The Companies Act, 1994 and the Articles of Association of the company the external auditor of the 
company is appointed by the shareholders in the AGM along with the fee in quantum. The auditor will be selected from 
the panel lawyer of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission in this regard. 

Financial reporting 
According to The Companies Act, 1994, the Board is responsible to prepare the financial statements of the company 
following the applicable accounting standards, rules and regulations etc. The Board is also responsible to present the 
financial statements before the shareholders in the annual general meeting for getting approval.
Regarding the financial position, the BNICL Board confirms the following:

 The company’s financial statements has been prepared in compliance with the International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by ICAB, the requirements of The Companies 
Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange Commission Rules 1987 and The Financial Institutions Act 1993.

 The financial statements represent the fair view of the state of affairs of the company and will enable the shareholders 
and other users to form their independent opinion with reasonable accuracy of the financial position.

Compliance with the requirement of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited, Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited and 
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission
In compliance with the requirement of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited 
(CSE) and Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC) BNICL submitted all type of shareholdings’ reports 
to the DSE, CSE and BSEC on monthly basis. BNICL follows all other compliance of the notifications, orders, rules etc. 
of DSE, CSE and BSEC and especially the Listing Regulations of Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited, 2015 
for approval of quarterly accounts and publication, declaration of financial performance, publication of price sensitive 
information, fixation of record date, Annual General Meeting, Extra Ordinary General Meeting etc. as a best practice of 
the corporate governance.

Communication with shareholders
All the shareholders have the right to attend the annual general meeting and to express their views on the company’s 
business and financial performances.  If any shareholder is unable to attend the annual general meeting, he may 
appoint a proxy on his behalf. The shareholder can also exchange his ideas and thoughts regarding company’s better-
ment in future. The Chairman and the Directors are always makes them available in the annual general meeting, so that 
they can also exchange their views.
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SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

   Amount in Taka

Particulars 2018 2017

Authorized capital: 1000,000,000 1,000,000,000
100,000,000 ordinary share of Tk.10 each 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital: 442,500,000 442,500,000
44,250,000 ordinary shares of Tk.10 each 

Composition of the shareholding as on 31 December 2017

Shareholdings Number of shares Percentage of paid
   up capital

Directors and sponsors shareholders 22,457,094 50.74%

Government 00.00 00.00%

Institute 600,605 1.36%

Foreign 71,942 0.17%

Public 21,120,359 47.73%

Total 44,250,000 100.00

Shareholding structure of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited as on December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Book Value Per Share Earning Per Share

AMOUNT IN TAKAAMOUNT IN TAKA
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EXECUTIVE OF BNICL 

Executive Branches

Md. Sana ullah
Managing Director & CEO

Mostafa Jasim Raihani, FCA
Chief Financial Officer

Sk. Salahuddin Ahmed
Sr. General Manager (BCD & U/W)

A.T.M. Malekuzzaman
Sr. General Manager (Claims & Re-Ins.)

Md. Ferozul Islam
General Manager (F&A)

Md. Masud Rana
Dy. General Manager &
Company Secretary(C.C.)

Sharmin Akhter
Head of Internal Audit

S.M. Khurshid Alam
Deputy Managing Director &
Branch Incharge
Dilkusha Br. Dhaka

Md. Shakur Elahi Joarder
Deputy Managing Director &
Branch Incharge
Gulshan Br. Dhaka

Ishraq Khan
Deputy Managing Director &
Branch Incharge
Uttara Br. Dhaka

Md. Anisur Rahman
Deputy Managing Director &
Branch Incharge
D.I.T. Br.Dhaka

Md. Rafiqul Islam
Deputy Managing Director &
Branch Incharge
Khatungonj Br. Chattogram

Jahangir Alam
Deputy Managing Director &
Branch Incharge
Sk.Mujib Road Br.Chattogram

Kazi Mohammed Shafiqul Islam
Deputy Managing Director &
Branch Incharge
Jubilee Road Br.Chattogram

Gopal Roy (Rana)
Sr. General Manager &
Branch Incharge  
V.I.P.Road Br.Dhaka

Mohammad Abdul Quader
Sr. General Manager &
Branch Incharge
Local Officer,Dhaka

Md. Mizanur Rahman Chowdhury  
Sr. General Manager &
Branch Incharge  
Principal Br. Dhaka 

Md. Shahidul Alam  
Sr. General Manager &
Branch Incharge
Agrabad Br. Chattogram

Kh. Mohammad Joynul Abedin  
General Manager &
Branch Incharge 
Palton Br. Dhaka

Md. Nasir Uddin (Rumy)  
General Manager &
Branch Incharge 
Jashore Br. Jashore

Md. Abdul Latif     
Dy. General Manager &
Branch Incharge  
 Kushtia Br. Kushtia

 A.K.M. Elias Khan
Sr. Asstt. General Manager &
Branch Incharge
Kadamtoli Br. Chattogram

Shamima Akter
Asstt. General Manager &
Branch Incharge
B.B. Avenue Br.Dhaka

Kh. Rezaur Rahman
Asstt. General Manager &
Branch Incharge
Jatrabari Br. Dhaka

Md. Tozammel Hossain
Asstt. General Manager &
Branch Incharge
Rangpur Br. Rangpur.

Kazi Taifur Rahman  
Sr. Manager & Branch Incharge
Bangshal Br. Dhaka

Md. Hemayet Sheikh
Sr. Manager & Branch Incharge
Bagerhat Br. Bagerhat

Taposh Chandra Halder  
Manager & Branch Incharge   
KarwanBazar Br. Dhaka

Asraful Alam  
Manager & Branch Incharge   
Khulna Br. Khulna

Md. Rehanul Islam   
Asstt. Manager & Branch Incharge    
Pabna Br. Pabna.

Nazmul Hasan  
Deputy Manager & Branch Incharge    
Baridhara Br. Dhaka

Md. Hossain Kabir 
Deputy Manager & Branch Incharge
Jamalpur Br.Jamalpur
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VARIOUS EVENTS
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management is the process, whereby organizations methodically address the risks attaching to their activities with 
the goal of achieving sustainable benefit. Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited always tried to reduce the 
risk of the portfolio in controllable position that push up the profit of the company. Good risk management strategy 
always increases the operational result and reduces unusual cost rising. Therefore BNICL get the benefit from the 
underwriting returns by relocating its portfolio by risk management.

Risks of Insurance Operations
BNICL faces many risks, which the company managed successfully, but its core competences and main contribution to 
society is to accept the risks underwritten by businesses and individuals, hence the strategic importance for citizens 
and governments that protect their assets and revenues, and that policies and scientific methods are established to 
ensure a minimum financial solvency and the continuity of its operations. Operational risk also includes market or credit 
risks. The management of BNICL always tried to minimize its operational risks.

Risk Management Plan
The BNICL management developed its risk management plant and established with the organization to achieving the 
objectives of the company. All the employees are cordially worked/control/overseeing the plan that can effect properly. 
The Company’s risk management of components, the approach, and the resources that will be used to manage the risk 
are setforth sequentially. It includes procedures, practices, responsibilities, and activities to implement the plans. 

Risk Concentrations
The BNICL takes the risk concentration in its overall business coverage. Estimating the maximum loss, the management 
tried to control the property risk, business risk etc. The estimation includes reinsurance coverage also. Earthquakes are 
excluded within the risk here. BNICL concentrated on the risk associated with other natural disasters, such as storms 
and floods. 

Risk Analysis
Risk analysis is very important for insurance business. BNICL takes over risks from customers. Insurers consider every 
available quantifiable factors to develop profiles of high and low insurance risk. Level of risk determines insurance 
premiums. Generally, insurance policies involving factors with greater risk of claims are charged at a higher rate. With 
much information at hand, insurers can evaluate risk of insurance policies at much higher accuracy. To this end, insurers 
collect a vast amount of information about policy holders and insured objects.

Underwring Risks
Underwriting risk is the risk of loss borne by an underwriter and refers to the risk of loss from underwriting activity. In 
insurance, underwriting risk may arise from an inaccurate assessment of the risks associated with writing an insurance 
policy or from uncontrollable factors. As a result, the insurer's costs may significantly exceed earned premiums. In line 
with that BNICL diversifies the company operates in the region with a perceived relatively low risk of natural catastro-
phes, enabling the company to protect against the risk through reinsurance. 

Reinsurance Risk
Reinsurance risk refers to the inability of the ceding company or the primary insurer to obtain insurance from a reinsurer 
at the right time and at an appropriate cost. The inability may emanate from a variety of reasons like unfavorable market 
conditions, etc. Default risk by a reinsurer also affects the ceding insurance company in an adverse manner as it may 
affect their profitability. Insurers transfer a part of their portfolio to a reinsurer in exchange for a premium. However, the 
unavailability of reinsurance at the right time and cost has ramifications for the ceding company. A default on the part of 
the reinsurer can lead to adverse impacts on the profitability and solvency of the ceding insurer. In line with that BNICL 
makes reinsurance agreements with the local and foreign companies.

Comprehensive Motor Insurance Risk
Moor insurance also known as car insurance is insurance for cars, trucks, motorcycles, and other road vehicles. Its 
primary use is to provide financial protection against physical damage or bodily injury resulting from traffic collisions and
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against liability that could also arise from incidents in a vehicle. Vehicle insurance may additionally offer financial protec-
tion against theft of the vehicle, and against damage to the vehicle sustained from events other than traffic collisions, 
such as keying, weather or natural disasters, and damage sustained by colliding with stationary objects. BNICL covers 
the comprehensive Motor Insurance Risk.

Risk of Cargo Insurance
Cargo Insurance applies mainly to Companies transport risks, transport risks, covering loss of or damage to goods in 
transit. This line of Insurance also contains luggage and boat/yacht Insurance whose policyholder is mainly a private 
individual. In addition, weather conditions may involve accumulation risks covering a geographically large region, such 
as storms and floods, and the risk of snow and icy roads during the winter pertains to comprehensive Insurance. The 
BNICL has taken out reinsurance coverage against major loss of or damage to cargoes. 

Market Risk
Market risk relates to the volatility of the market price of assets. It involves exposure to movements in the level of finan-
cial variables, such as stock prices, interest rates, exchange rates or commodity prices. It also includes the exposure 
of options to movements in the underlying asset price. Market risk also involves exposure to other unanticipated move-
ments in financial variables or to movements in the actual or implied volatility of asset prices and options. It is obvious 
that this volatility affects the actual market value of the company’s assets, including those needed to cover the liabilities, 
and therefore also affects the company’s actual surplus. In line with that BNICL always take appropriate measures to 
control the market risk.

Investment Risks
In insurance business, investments comprise assets covering technical provisions and shareholder’s equity. Through 
controlled investment risks, BNICL aims is to achieve the best possible return on the investment portfolio at an accept-
able risk level while taking account of the structure of technical provisions and the solvency targets. The Company 
applies the Asset/Liability Management (ALM) model used to determine the basic allocation of the risk. 

Interest Rate Risk
Usually general insurance companies have good amount of liquid investment and the investment kept in the form of 
FDR. The FDR interest is one of the main incomes of the company. Decrease of interest rate may reduce from income 
from the FDRs. Thus, BNICL takes early precaution to control the risk.  

Legal Compliance Risks
In general insurance business, legal compliance risk is a vital one. Non compliance of legal procedure may rise lose 
thus BNICL always take early safety controlling over the legal compliance risk.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
The management of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited believes that besides maximizing the profit of 
the company, every organization should have some responsibilities towards the society as a part of corporate social 
responsibility (CSR). In line with that the company voluntarily contributes to different socio-economics activities for the 
development of the country. To do so, the company shared some part of profit to develop the society in the year 2018.

Fire 38.86%
Marine Cargo 25.86%

Mise 17.82%

Motor 17.06%

Marine Hull 0.40%

CLASS WISE GROSS
PREMUM INCOME-2018 
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BNICL HUMAN RESOURCES STATUS 
BNICL beliefs on the utilization of high quality of human resources within the company.  Currently, the management 
trying to develop the existing employees through inside training program. Because good human capital always produce 
good output. Keeping that in mind, the management developing the service rule of the company in conjunction with the 
market requirement.  It is all about developing and managing the knowledge, skills, creativity, aptitude and talent of the 
employees.

The company encourages open communication, feedback and discussions about any matter of importance to employ-
ees; so that they are well informed and can contribute to the change happening across the organization. BNICL’s main 
strength is the right employee at right place. The principal strength of the company is the eminence and devotion of its 
employees and their shared sense of being part of a team. The company always concentrates on equitable distribution 
of human resources development opportunities and benefits to its employees.

BNICL welcome recruitment of employees from different cultures, regions, ethnic groups and generations. Besides, 
creating good environment for the employees is also taken a key objective of the company. Happy life of the employees 
increases the fellow relationship of the company.

Current human resource status of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited as on December 31, 2018 was under:

Designation   Numbers
Chief Executive Officer   01
Chief Financial Officer   01
Deputy General Manager & Company Secretary  01
Head of Internal Audit   01
Deputy Managing Director   07
Assistant Managing Director   02
Senior General Manager   09
General Manager   12
Senior Deputy General Manager   02
Deputy General Manager   19
Assistant General Manager   42
Senior Manager   14
Manager    64
Deputy Manager   22
Assistant Manager   41
Senior Executive Officer   14
Executive Officer   26
Senior Officer   02
Junior Officer   15
Officer    20
Attendance & Others   113
Total    428 Nos
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Nu
rul Azim & Co

Dhaka

Nurul Azim & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Nurul Azim & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

Dated: 18 April 2019
Place : Dhaka, Bangladesh

REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE CO. LTD.
 ON COMPLIANCE ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Bangladesh National Insurance Co. 
Ltd. for the year ended on 31 December 2018. This Code relates to the Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our examination was 
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the 
conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance 
Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of 
Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this 
Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after due scrutiny 
and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion.

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in the above  
 mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as  
 adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code;

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act, 1994, the
 securities laws and other relevant laws; and

(d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

Nam Village, Building # 06 (Level -C/4), Road # 02, Banani, Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh.
Phone: 8813302, 9860571, Cell: 01817044586, 01819238628, Fax: 02-8813491, E-mail: bmnazim@citechco.net
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Compliance Status of Corporate Governance Guideline    
Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Notification 
No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and 
Exchange Ordinance, 1969 is as follows:
Report under condition no. 9.00 of above referred notification    

Condition
No.

1

Title RemarksNot
CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

Board Of Directors:   

1.1
Size of the Board of Directors: The Number of the Board 
members of the company shall not be less than 5 ( Five ) 
and more than 20 (Twenty ).

√

1.2(a) At least one fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in 
the company’s Board shall be independent directors. √

1.2(b) (i) Independent director does not hold any share or holds 
less than one percent (1%) shares of the total paid up 
shares of the company.

√

1.2(b) (ii) 

Independent director is not a sponsor of the company and 
is not connected with the company's any sponsor or direc-
tor or shareholder who holds one percent (1%) or more 
shares of the total paid-up shares of the company on the 
basis of family relationship. His/her family members also 
should not hold above mentioned shares in the company

√

1.2(b) (iii) 
who has not been an executive of the company in imme-
diately preceding 2 (two) financial years √

1.2(b) (iv) 
does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary 
or otherwise, with the company or its subsidiary or associ-
ated companies

√

1.2(b) (v)
Independent director are not a member or TREC (Trading 
Right Entitlement Certificate) holder, director or officer of 
any stock exchange

√

1.2(b) (vi)
"Independent director is not a shareholder, director 
excepting independent director or officer of any member 
or TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of 
the capital market."

√

1.2(b) (vii)

Independent director is not a partner or an executive or 
was not a partner or an executive during the preceding 3 
(three) years of the concerned company’s statutory audit 
firm or audit firm engaged in internal audit services or 
audit firm conducting special audit or professional certify-
ing compliance of this Code

√

1.2(b) (viii) Not an independent director in more than 5 (five) listed 
companies

√

1.2(b) (ix)
who has not been convicted by a court of competent 
jurisdiction as a defaulter in payment of any loan or any 
advance to a bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution 
(NBFI)

√

1.2 Independent Directors:   
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

1.2(b) (x) Not convicted for a criminal offence involving moral 
turpitude √

1.2(c)
The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the 
Board and approved by the shareholders in the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM)

√

1.2(d) "The post of independent director(s) cannot remain 
vacant formore than 90 (ninety) days" √

1.2(e) The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for 
a period of  3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 
( one) term only 

√

1.3(a) Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual 
with integrity who is able to ensure compliance with finan-
cial laws, regulatory requirements and corporate laws and 
can make meaningful contribution to the business

√

1.3(b)(i) Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of 
an unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of 
Tk. 100.00 million or any listed company or a member of 
any national or international chamber of commerce or 
business association

1.3(b)(ii) Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not 
lower than Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director 
or Deputy Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or 
Head of Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or 
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal 
Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an 
unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of 
Tk.100.00 million or of a listed company

√

1.3(b) Independent director shall have following qualifications:   

1.3 Qualification of Independent Director (ID):   

N/A

N/A

1.3(b)(iii) Former official of government or statutory or autonomous 
or regulatory body in the position not below 5th Grade of 
the national pay scale, who has at least educational 
background of bachelor degree in economics or 
commerce or business or Law

1.3(b)(iv) University Teacher who has educational background in 
Economics or Commerce or Business Studies or Law

√
1.3(b)(v) Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least 

in the High Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court 
or a Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management 
Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered 
Certified Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or 
Chartered Management Accountant or Chartered Secre-
tary or equivalent qualification

N/A
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

1.3(c) The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) 
years of experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b) √

1.3(d) In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences 
may be relaxed subject to prior approval of the Commission.

1.4(a) The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) of the company shall be filled by different individuals

√

1.4(b) The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) of a listed company shall not hold the same 
position in another listed company

√

1.4(c) The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from 
among the non-executive directors of the company √

1.4(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles and 
responsibilities of the Chairperson and the Managing 
Director and/or Chief Executive Officer

√

1.4(e) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the 
remaining members may elect one of themselves from 
nonexecutive directors as Chairperson for that particular 
Board’s meeting; the reason of absence of the regular 
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

√

1.5(i) Industry outlook and possible future developments in the 
industry √

1.5(ii) Segment -wise or product- wise performance. √

1.5(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk 
factors, threat to sustainability and negative impact on 
environment

√

1.5(iv) A Discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin 
and Net Profit Margin. √

1.5(v) Discussion on continuity of any Extra - Ordinary gain or 
loss.

√

1.5(vi) A detailed discussion on related party transactions along 
with a statement showing amount, nature of related party, 
nature of transactions and basis of transactions of all 
related party transactions

√

1.5(vii) Utilization of proceeds from public issues, right issues 
and / or through any others instruments

1.5(viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the 
company goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat 
Public Offering (RPO), Rights Offer, Direct Listing, etc. 

1.5(ix) An explanation on any significant variance that occurs 
between Quarterly Financial performances and Annual 
Financial Statements

√

1.5 The Directors’ Report to Shareholders

1.4 Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer

N/A

N/A

N/A
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

1.5(x) Remuneration to directors including independent directors √

1.5(xi) The financial statements prepared by the management of 
the issuer company present fairly its state of affairs, the 
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity

√

1.5(xii) Proper books of account of the issuer company have been 
maintained

√

1.5(xiii) Appropriate accounting policies  have been consistently 
applied in preparation of the financial statements and that 
the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent  judgment.

√

1.5(xiv) International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in 
Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements and any departure there from has 
been adequately disclosed

√

1.5(xv) The system of internal control is sound in design and has 
been effectively implemented and monitored.

√

1.5(xvi) Minority shareholders have been protected from abusive 
actions by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders 
acting either directly or indirectly and have effective means 
of redress

√

1.5(xvii) There is no significant doubt upon the issuer company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, if the issuer 
company is not considered to be a going concern, the fact 
along with reasons there of shall be disclosed

√

1.5(xviii) significant deviations from the last year’s operating results 
of the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons 
thereof shall be explained

√

1.5(xix) key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 
(five) years shall be summarized √

1.5(xx) if the issuer company has not declared dividend (cash or 
stock) for the year √

1.5(xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or 
stock dividend has been or shall be declared as interim 
dividend 

1.5(xxii) The total number of Board meetings held during the year 
and attendance by each director √

1.5(xxiii)(a) Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other 
related parties (name wise details): √

1.5(xxiii)(b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, 
Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compli-
ance and their spouses and minor children (name-wise details)

√

1.5(xxiii) A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along with 
name-wise details where stated below) held by:   

N/A
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

1.5(xxiii)(c) Executives √

1.5(xxiii)(d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting 
interest in the company (name-wise details)

1.5(xxiv) In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure on the following information 
to the shareholders:   

1.5(xxiv)(a) A brief resume of the director

√

√

1.5(xxiv)(b) Nature of his /her expertise in specific functional areas √

1.5(xxiv)(c) Names of companies in which the person also holds the 
directorship and the membership of committees of the 
board

1.5(xxv)(a) "Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of 
financial statements"

√

√

1.5(xxv)(b) Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, 
clearly describing the effect on financial performance or 
results and financial position as well as cash flows in 
absolute figure for such changes

√

1.5(xxv)(c) Comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of 
financial performance or results and financial position as 
well as cash flows for current financial year with immedi-
ate preceding five years explaining reasons thereof

√

1.5(xxv)(d) Compare such financial performance or results and finan-
cial position as well as cash flows with the peer industry 
scenario

√

1.5(xxv)(e) Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the 
country and the globe

√

1.5(xxv)(f) Risks and concerns issues related to the financial state-
ments, explaining such risk and concerns mitigation plan 
of the company

√

1.5(xxv)(g) Future plan or projection or forecast for company’s opera-
tion, performance and financial position, with justification 
thereof, i.e., actual position shall be explained to the 
shareholders in the next AGM

√

1.5(xxvi) Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to 
the Board as required under condition No. 3(3) shall be 
disclosed as per Annexure-A

√

1.5(xxvii) The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of 
conditions of this Code as required under condition No. 9 
shall be disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C

√

1.6 Meetings of the Board of Directors   

1.5(xxv) A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of 
the company’s position and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial 
statements, among others, focusing on:   
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

1.6 The company shall conduct its Board meetings and 
record the minutes of the meetings as well as keep 
required books and records in line with the provisions of 
the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bang-
ladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not incon-
sistent with any condition of this Code

√

1.7(a) The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) at condition No. 6, for the Chairperson 
of the Board, other board members and Chief Executive 
Officer of the company

√

1.7 Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer

2 Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company.   

3 Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of 
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS)   

1.7(b) The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be 
posted on the website of the company including, among 
others, prudent conduct and behavior; confidentiality; 
conflict of interest; compliance with laws, rules and 
regulations; prohibition of insider trading; relationship with 
environment, employees, customers and suppliers; and 
independency

√

3.1(a) The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary 
(CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of 
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC)

√

2(a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the 
holding company shall be made applicable to the compo-
sition of the Board of the subsidiary company 

N/A

2(b) At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the 
holding company shall be a director on the Board of the 
subsidiary company

N/A

2(c) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary 
company shall be placed for review at the following Board 
meeting of the holding company

N/A

2(d) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the 
holding company shall state that they have reviewed the 
affairs of the subsidiary company also 

N/A

2(e) The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also 
review the financial statements, in particular the invest-
ments made by the subsidiary company 

N/A

3(1) Appointment   
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

3.1(c) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company 
shall not hold any executive position in any other 
company at the same time

√

3.1(b) The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO), Company Secretary (CS), Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit and 
Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals

√

3.1(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsi-
bilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS

√

3.1(e) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be 
removed from their position without approval of the Board 
as well as immediate dissemination to the Commission 
and stock exchange(s).

3.2 The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company 
shall attend the meetings of the Board

3.3 Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO)   

√

3.3(a)(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue 
statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading

√

3.3(a) The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed financial statements for the 
year and that to the best of their knowledge and belief   

3.2 Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

N/A

3.3(a)(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of 
the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards and applicable laws

√

3.3(b) The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, 
to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions 
entered into by the company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for 
the company’s Board or its members

√

3.3(c) The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be 
disclosed in the Annual Report

√

5.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors.

4(i) Audit Committee √

4 Board of Directors’ Committee: For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall 
have atleast following sub-committees:   

5 Audit Committee.   

4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee. √

5.1(a) The company shall have an Audit Committee as a 
sub-committee of the Board of Directors

√

√
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

5.1(c) The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; 
the duties of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth 
in writing 

√

5.1(b) The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring 
that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good 
monitoring system within the business

√

5.2(a) The audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 
(three) members √

5.2 Constitution of the Audit Committee: 

5.2(b) The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee 
who shall be non-executive directors of the company 
excepting Chairperson of the Board and shall include at 
least 1 (one) independent director

√

5.2(c) All members of the audit committee should be " financially 
literate" and at least 1 (One) member shall have account-
ing or related financial management background and 10 ( 
(ten ) years of such experience

√

5.2(d) When the term of service of any Committee member 
expires or there is any circumstance causing any 
Committee member to be unable to hold office before 
expiration of the term of service, thus making the number 
of the Committee members to be lower than the 
prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the Board shall 
appoint the new Committee member to fill up the vacancy 
immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the date 
of vacancy in the Committee to ensure continuity of the 
performance of work of the Audit Committee

5.2(e) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the 
Committee

√

5.2(f) The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not 
constitute without at  least 1 (one) Independent director √

5.3(a) "The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit 
Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit Committee, 
who shall be an independent director"

√

5.3(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Commit-
tee, the remaining members may elect one of themselves 
as Chairperson for that particular meeting, in that case 
there shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as 
required under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of 
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly 
recorded in the minutes

√

5.3(c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present 
in the Annual General Meeting (AGM):

5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee:

√

5.4(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meet-
ings in a financial year √

5.3 Chairperson of the Audit Committee:

N/A
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

5.4(b) The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall 
be constituted in presence of either two members or 
two-third of the members of the Audit Committee, which-
ever is higher, where presence of an independent director 
is a must

√

5.5(a) Oversee the financial reporting process √

5.5 Role of Audit Committee   

5.5(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles √

5.5(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure 
that it is adequately resourced, including approval of the 
Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the 
Internal Audit and Compliance Report

√

5.5(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors √

5.5(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for 
review of the annual financial statements before submis-
sion to the Board for approval or adoption

√

5.5(f) Review along with the management, the annual financial 
statements before submission to the Board for approval √

5.5(g) Review along with the management, the quarterly and 
half yearly financial statements before submission to the 
Board for approval

√

5.5(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function √

5.5(i) Review the management's dicussion and analysis before 
disclosing in the annual report √

5.5(j) Review statement of all related party transactions submit-
ted by the management √

5.5(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control 
weakness issued by statutory auditors √

5.5(l) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope 
and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time 
required for effective audit and evaluate the performance 
of external auditors

√

5.5(m) Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial 
Public Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or 
Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per the 
purposes stated in relevant offer document or prospectus 
approved by the Commission

√

5.6(a)(i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the 
Board √

5.6 Reporting of the Audit Committee: 

5.6(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors:
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

5.6(a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following findings, if any 

5.6(a)(ii)(a) Report on conflicts of interests

5.6(a)(ii)(b) Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material 
defect identified in the internal audit and compliance 
process or in the financial statements

5.6(a)(ii)(c) Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances 
including securities related laws, rules and regulations 

N/A

N/A

N/A

5.6(a)(ii)(d) Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems 
necessary shall be disclosed to the Board immediately N/A

5.6(b) Reporting to the Authorities: If the Audit Committee has 
reported to the Board about anything which has material 
impact on the financial condition and results of operation 
and has discussed with the Board and the management 
that any rectification is necessary and if the Audit Commit-
tee finds that such rectification has been unreasonably 
ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such finding to 
the Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the 
Board for three times or completion of a period of 6 (six) 
months from the date of first reporting to the Board, 
whichever is earlier

√
6.1(a) The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board

√

6.1(b) The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the 
nomination criteria or policy for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, experiences and independence of 
directors and top level executive as well as a policy for 
formal process of considering remuneration of directors, 
top level executive

√

6.1(c) "The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be 
clearly setforth in writing covering the areas stated at the 
condition No.6(5)(b)."

√
6.2(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members 

including an independent director

N/A

5.7 Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors: 
Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, 
including any report made to the Board under condition 
No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed by 
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in 
the annual report of the issuer company.

N/A

6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

6.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors 

6.2 Constitution of the NRC   
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

6.2(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive 
directors √

6.2(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and 
appointed by the Board √

6.2(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any 
member of the Committee √

6.2(e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal 
of any member of the Committee or in any other cases of 
vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one 
hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the 
Committee

6.2(e) The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt 
any external expert and/or member(s) of staff to the 
Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting member, if 
the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such 
external expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be 
required or valuable for the Committee

N/A

N/A

6.2(g) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the 
Committee √

6.2(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute 
without attendance of at least an independent director √

6.2(i) "No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly 
orindirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or consul-
tancyrole or otherwise, other than Director’s fees or hono-
rarium from the company"

√

6.3 Chairperson of the NRC   

6.3(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be 
Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an independ-
ent director

√

6.3(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the 
remaining members may elect one of themselves as 
Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of 
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly 
recorded in the minutes

√

6.3(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual 
general meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the 
shareholders.

6.4(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial 
year

√

6.4 Meeting of the NRC   

6.4(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emer-
gency meeting upon request by any member of the NRC √

Will be Complied
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

6.4(c) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be consti-
tuted in presence of either two members or two third of 
the members of the Committee, whichever is higher, 
where presence of an independent director is must as 
required under condition No. 6(2)(h);

√

6.4(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly 
be recorded in the minutes and such minutes shall be 
confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC

√

6.5(a) "NRC shall be independent and responsible or account-
able to the Board and to the shareholders" √

6.5(b)(i)(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable 
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable direc-
tors to run the company successfully;

√

6.5 Role of the NRC   

6.5(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation 
to the Board:   

6.5(b)(i) Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top 
level executive, considering the following:   

6.5(b)(i)(b) The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear 
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks √

6.5(b)(i)(c) Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short 
and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the company and its goals

√

6.5(b)(ii) Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consid-
eration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational 
background and nationality √

6.5(b)(iii) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors 
and who may be appointed in top level executive position 
in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend 
their appointment and removal to the Board

√

6.5(b)(iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of 
independent directors and the Board √

6.5(b)(v) Identifying the company’s needs for employees at differ-
ent levels and determine their selection, transfer or 
replacement and promotion criteria

√

6.5(b)(vi) Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the 
company’s human resources and training policies √

6.5(c) The company shall disclose the nomination and remu-
neration policy and the evaluation criteria and activities of 
NRC during the year at a glance in its annual report

√

7 External or Statutory Auditors   √
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Condition
No. Title RemarksNot

CompliedComplied

Compliance Status as on
31 December 2018

7.1 The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following 
services of the company, namely:-   

8 Maintaining a website by the Company   

7.1(i) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions √

7.1(ii) Financial information systems design and implementation √

7.1(iii) Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting 
records or financial statements √

7.1(iv) Broker-dealer services √
7.1(v) Actuarial services √
7.1(vi) Internal audit services or special audit services √
7.1(vii) Any service that the Audit Committee determines √
7.1(viii) Audit or certification services on compliance of corporate 

governance as required under condition No. 9(1); and 
√

√

√

7.1(ix) Any other service that creates conflict of interest.
7.2 No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall 

possess any share of the company they audit at least 
during the tenure of their audit assignment of that 
company; his or her family members also shall not hold 
any shares in the said company

7.3 "Representative of external or statutory auditors shall 
remain present in the Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual 
General Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) to 
answer the queries of theshareholders."

√
8.1 The company shall have an official website linked with the 

website of the stock exchange

N/A

9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance.   

√
8.2 The company shall keep the website functional from the 

date of listing

√
8.3 "The company shall make available the detailed disclo-

sures on its website as required under the listing regula-
tions of the concernedstock exchange(s)."

√

√

√

9.1 The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing 
Professional Accountant or Secretary (Chartered 
Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or 
Chartered Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or 
audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance of conditions 
of Corporate Governance Code of the Commission and 
shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual 
Report

9.2 The professional who will provide the certificate on 
compliance of this Corporate Governance Code shall be 
appointed by the shareholders in the annual general 
meeting

9.3 The directors of the company shall state, in accordance 
with the Annexure-C attached, in the directors’ report 
whether the company has complied with these conditions 
or not
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Shareholdings of Directors /Sponsor Shareholders Designation Shareholding status

Shares %

B) Shareholders by others

 1 Mr. Abdul Baset Mojumder Chairman 885,000 2.0000%
 2 Mr. Mostafa Kamal Vice Chairman 2,424,833 5.4800%
 3 Mrs. Beauty Akter Director 1,000,000 2.2600%
 4 Mr. Abdur Rouf Director 1,155,000 2.6100%
 5 Mrs. Tahmina Binthe Mostafa Director 3,308,334 7.4800%
 6 Mrs. Tanjima Binthe Mostafa Director 3,208,334 7.2500%
 7 Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Mostafa Director 4,175,167 9.4400%
 8 Mr. Taif Bin Yousuf Director 895,833 2.0200%
 9 Mr. Yousuf Ali Director 895,833 2.0200%
 10 Ms. Tasnim Binthe Mostafa Director 1,000,000 2.2600%
 11 Mr. Wasikur Rahman Director 1,000,000 2.2600%
 12 Professor Dr.Mijanur Rahman Independent Director 0 0.0000%
 13 Mr. Mohammed Salim, FCMA Independent Director 0 0.0000%
 14 Professor Dr.Goutam Buddha Das Independent Director 0 0.0000%
 15 Mr. Fakhruddin Ahmed, FCMA, FCA Independent Director 0 0.0000%
 16 Mr. Monjur Md. Shaiful Azam Public Director 1,500 0.0034%
 17 Mr. Md. Ruhul Amin FCA Public Director 1,100 0.0025%
 18 Mr. Md Hasan Rajib Prodhan Public Director 1,170 0.0026%
 19 Mr. Mohd. Naim Akhter Public Director 1,500 0.0034%
 20 Md. Mozaffar Hossain Public Director 103,490 0.2300%
 21 Muhammad Zakaria Sponsor 1,200,000 2.7100%
 22 M.F. Kamal Sponsor 1,200,000 2.7100%
 21 Other Shareholders  21,792,906 49.2581%
 Total  44,250,000 100.0000%

Chief Executive Officer    nil 
Chife Financial Officer    nil 
Company Secretary ( C.C)   nil 
Head of Internal Audit   nil 
Parent/Subsidiary/Associate and other related parties  nil 
Shareholding of top five executives   nil 
Shareholders holding ten percent or more   nil 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS ON DECEMBER 31, 2018     

Shareholding by Companies, Directors and their Spouse & Children: 
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DECLARATION BY CEO AND CFO AS 
PER CONDITION NO.1(5)(XXVI) OF
CGC
The Board of Directors
Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.
Head Office: Rashid Tower (3rd Floor)
Plot # 11 Road # 18, Gulshan-1
Dhaka-1212

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 December, 2018

Dear Sirs,
Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/ CMRRCD/2006 
158/207/Admin/80 Dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do 
hereby declare that:

1. The Financial Statements of Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd. for the year ended on 31 December, 2018 
have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

2. The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in 
order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

3. The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly presented
in its financial statements;

4. To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and 
maintenance of accounting records;

5. Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies 
and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

6. The management’s use of the going concerns basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is appropriate
and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: -
i. We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31 December, 2018 and that to the best of our 

knowledge and belief:

  a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
   that might be misleading;

  b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
   existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

ii. There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which 
are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

Dated : Dhaka
April 18, 2019

Mostafa Jasim Raihani
Chief Financial Officer

Md.Sana Ullah
Chief Executive Officer
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CREDIT RATING INFORMATION
Credit rating of an insurance company reflects its financial strength and ability to pay policyholders’ claims and 
obligation of time. Rating provides an opinion on the financial strength of the insurer, from a policyholder’s perspective 
which may act as an important input influencing the consumer’s choice of insurance companies and products. Credit 
rating also gives an idea to the investors about the credibility of the company, and the risk factor attached to a particular 
instrument. So the investors can decide whether to invest in such companies or not. Higher the rating, the more will be 
the willingness to invest in the instruments and vise-versa. Current credit rating of Bangladesh National Insurance 
Company Limited is as under issued by Emerging Credit Rating Limited:

Description Information

Long term rating AA-

Short term rating ST-2

Date of rating September 30, 2018

Validity of Rating Till September 29, 2019

Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL) has reaffirmed the ratings to Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited 
based on its financials as well as other relevant qualitative and quantitative information. ECRL has affirmed to AA- as 
long term credit rating and affirmed ST-2 as short term credit rating to the BNICL. The outlook of the rating is Stable. 
The ratings are consistent with ECRL’s methodology for this type of company. The ratings are based on audited 
financial statements from FY2010 to FY2017, site visit and other qualitative along with quantitative information up to the 
date of rating.  
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited is an operating committee of the Board 
charged with oversight of financial reporting and disclosure. Committee members are drawn from members of the 
company's board of directors, with a Chairman (Independent Director) selected from among the members of the 
directors. BNICL Audit Committees empowered to acquire the consulting resources and expertise deemed necessary 
to perform their responsibilities. 

The Company’s management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements, for maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting, and for assessing the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. 
In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Committee reviewed and discussed the quarterly un-audited and yearly 
audited financial statements with related issues including of the accounting principles; the reasonableness of significant 
accounting treatment; and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements. The Committee is governed by a board 
approved terms of reference. 

A qualifying audit committee is required in a publicly listed company in accordance with the BSEC Notification # 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018. 

Composition
The Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited formed the Audit Committee with following 
three members: 

Name of Directors Board Audit Committee
Mohammed Salim, FCMA   Chairman
Yousuf Ali  Member
Tanjima Binthe Mostafa  Member

The Chairman of the Audit committee is an Independent Director having accounting and financial management experience.

Meeting of the Audit Committee
During the period under review a total of 04 (four) Audit Committee meetings were held at the head office of the 
company.

The Board Audit Committee has been constituted with an Independent Director having accounting and Financial 
Management experience as Chairman. The Head of Internal Audit Department and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
attended the meeting(s) by invitation.

Role of the Audit Committee
Audit Committee of the Board can play an effective role in providing a bridge between the Board and Management, 
Shareholders and other Stakeholders. The Board of Directors of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited 
recognized the importance of the Audit Committee. The Key role of the Committee is to assist the Board in discharging

its responsibilities for financial and business discipline, financial reporting, corporate governance and internal control. 
The following are the prime responsibilities for the Audit Committee.

 To evaluate whether management is setting the appropriate compliance culture of internal control and ensuring 
that all employees have good understanding of their roles and responsibilities.

 To review the existing risk management policies and procedures for ensuring an effective internal check and 
control system.
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 To review the financial statements and determine whether they are complete and consistent with the accounting 
standard set by the regulatory authorities.

 To review the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit function.

 To review the findings and recommendations made by the internal auditors for removing the irregularities detected.

 To review the auditing performance of external auditors and their audit reports and recommending to the Board 
for appointment or removal of external auditors.

Activities
During the period under review, the committee, interalia, focused on the following activities:

 Reviewed quarterly financial statement of the company to measure the performance.

 Reviewed significant internal audit findings and advised the management to rectify the deficiencies and improve 
operational performance and compliance.

 The Audit Committee recommended strengthening of Internal Audit Department with skill manpower to increase 
capacity and efficiency of the Audit Department.

 Reviewed and examined the Draft Annual Financial Statements 2018 made out in line with accounting standard 
set by the regulatory authorities and recommended to place the same before the Board for consideration.

Acknowledgement
The audit committee would like to express their sincere thanks to the members of the Board, key management person-
nel, internal audit Division and all employees for their utmost co-operation extended by them.

Mohammed Salim, FCMA
Chairman
Board Audit Committee

17 April 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO 

THE SHAREHOLDERS

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Bangladesh National Insurance Company Limited (the Company), which 
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit or loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income, Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, Consolidated Insurance Revenue Accounts, Fire 
Insurance Revenue Account, Marine and Marine Hull Insurance Revenue Account, Motor Insurance Revenue Account, 
Miscellaneous Insurance Revenue Account, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
then ended, Classified Summary of  Assets as at December 31, 2018 and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information disclosed in notes 1 to 49 and Annexure- A

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
company as at December 31, 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the 
Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Account-
ants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accord-
ance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion.

Our key audit matters

Risk Our response to the risk
Premium Income
Gross general insurance premiums comprise the 
total premiums received for the whole period of cover 
provided by contracts entered into
during the accounting period.

With respect to Premium income in respect of various types 
of insurance we carried out the following procedures:

Given the important nature, connections to other 
items to the financial statements and sensitivity of the 
item we believe this area pose high level of risk.

• The design and operating effectiveness of key controls 
around premium income recognition process.
• Carried out analytical procedures and recalculated 
premium income for the period.
• Carried out cut-off testing to ensure unearned premium 
income has not been included in the premium income.

• On a sample basis reviewed policy to ensure appropriate 
policy stamp was affixed to the contract and the same has 
been reflected in the premium register.

• Ensured on a sample basis that the premium income was 
being deposited in the designated bank account.
• Tested on a sample basis to see that appropriate VAT was 
being collected and deposited to bank through Treasury 
Challan.
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Risk Our response to the risk

Risk Our response to the risk

• For a sample of insurance contracts tested to see if appro-
priate level of reinsurance was done and whether that re 
insurance premium was deducted from the gross premium.

• Applying specialist judgment ensured if there is any impair-
ment of the re-insurer.
• Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of 
disclosures against relevant accounting standards, Insur-
ance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), Insurance Rules, 
1958 and other applicable rules and regulations and regula-
tory guidelines.

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of controls 
around the due and intimated claim recording process.
We additionally carried out the following substantive 
testing’s around this item:

• Obtained the claim register and tested for completeness of 
claims recorded in the register on a sample basis.

This account represents the claim due or intimated 
from the insured and involves significant manage-
ment judgment and risk of understatement. In 
extreme scenario this item may have going concern 
implications for the company.

Investment In shares
We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key 
controls around monitoring, valuation and updating of prices 
of the positions held by the company from trusted sources. 
Additionally, we performed the following:

Insurance company makes a number of investments 
in the listed and unlisted capital market with required 
regulatory permission. Income generated from the 
investments (realized gain and dividend received) is 
credited to the Profit & Loss Account. Unrealized 
capital gain or loss if any is transferred to the Invest-
ment Fluctuation Fund subsequently or as per the 
policy of the company.

• Obtained year-end share holding positions from the 
company and through directional testing assessed the 
completeness of the report.
• Ascertained the valuation of the holding as per IFRS 13.

This item has significant impact on the earnings 
performance of the company and return to the share-
holders and might be prone to misreporting as large 
unreported fall in the value of any holding may wipe 
out the value of the portfolio and hamper the distribu-
tion capability of the company.

Estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims whether due or intimated and claim Payment

• Obtained a sample of claimed policy copy and cross check 
it with claim.

Obtained a sample of survey reports cross checked those 
against respective ledger balances and in case of discrep-
ancy carried out further investigation.

• Obtained and discussed with management about their 
basis for estimation and challenged their assumptions 
where appropriate.
• Reviewed the claim committee meeting minutes about 
decision about impending claims.
• Tested a sample of claims payments with intimation letter, 
survey report, bank statement, claim payment register and 
general ledger.
• Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of 
disclosures against relevant accounting standards, Insur-
ance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), Insurance Rules, 
1958 and other applicable rules and regulations and regula-
tory guidelines.
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• Reviewed and challenged the assumptions used for the 
valuation models for any unquoted securities.

• Recalculated unrealized gain or loss at the year end.
• Carried out cut-off testing to ensure unrealized gain or loss 
was recognized in correct period.

• Obtained the CDBL report and share portfolio and cross 
checked against each other to confirm unrealized gain or 
loss.
• Check the subsequent positioning of this unrealized 
amount after the year end.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the 
Annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the 
other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assur-
ance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and Internal 
Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and Exchange
Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reason-
able assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will

• Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of 
disclosures against
relevant accounting standards, Insurance Act 1938 (as 
amended in 2010), Insurance Rules, 1958 and other 
applicable rules and regulations and regulatory guidelines.
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always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit

• Evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical require-
ments regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and 
Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also 
report that:

• We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;
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Dated 18th April, 2019
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh

• In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appeared from our examinations of those books;

• The Company management has followed relevant provisions of laws and rules in managing the affairs of the Company 
and proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books have been properly maintained and (where 
applicable) proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from branches not visited by 
us;

• As per section 63(2) of the Insurance Act 2010, in our opinion to the best of our knowledge and belief an according 
to the information and explanation given to us, all expenses of management wherever incurred and whether incurred 
directly or indirectly, in respect of insurance business of the company transacted in Bangladesh during the year 
under report have been duly debited to the related Revenue Accounts and the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
of the Company;

• We report that to the best of our information and as shown by its books, the company during the year under report 
has not paid any person any commission in any form, outside Bangladesh in respect of any its business re-insured 
abroad;

• The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, 
related Revenue Accounts, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows of the Company together 
with the annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

• The expenditure was incurred for the purpose of the Company’s business.

 A. Hoque & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes 

A. Shareholder's Equity and Liabilities:
Share Capital:
Authorized Share Capital 19  1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital 20  442,500,000  442,500,000
Reserve and Contingency Account 21  354,915,981  312,085,666
Reserve for Exceptional Losses   268,964,398  231,762,034
Profit or Loss Appropriation Account   85,951,583 80,323,632
Total Shareholders' Equity   797,415,981  754,585,666

Balance of Funds and Accounts: 22 149,916,876  150,360,198
Fire Insurance Business Account   54,047,610  34,246,564
Marine Cargo Insurance Business Account   41,567,250  42,497,253
Marine Hull Insurance Business Account   1,845,698  1,567,441
Motor Insurance Business Account   33,053,409  44,059,201
Miscellaneous Insurance Business Account   19,402,909  27,989,739

Premium Deposits Account 23  12,863,818 10,303,234

Liabilities and Provisions   366,182,508  320,752,602
Sundry Creditors-Including Provision for Expenses and Taxes  24  148,473,425  120,474,677
Amount due to other persons or bodies
Carrying on Insurance Business  25  55,327,230 45,972,566
Deferred Tax Liability 26  4,311,476 4,785,589
Estimated liabilities in respect of outstanding
Claims whether due or intimated 27 158,070,378 149,519,771
Total Shareholders' Equity and Liabilities   1,326,379,183  1,236,001,700

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMETN OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes 

B. Property and Assets:
Non-Current Assets  334,149,983 184,289,507
 28  255,059,360 100,561,350
Fixed Assets -At Cost    332,306,991  168,237,270
Less: Accumulated Depreciation   77,247,631  67,675,920

  79,090,622  83,728,157
Investment-At cost (BGTB) 29  25,000,000  25,000,000
Investment in Shares 30 54,090,622  58,728,157

Current Assets  992,229,201  1,051,712,193
Interest Accrued but not Due 31 25,817,563  24,746,014
Amount Due from Other Persons or Bodies   
Carrying on Insurance Business 32  1,200,851  1,200,851
Sundry Debtors-Including Advances, Deposits & Prepayments 33  127,898,143 103,491,537
Stock of Stationery 34 884,520  655,420
Cash and Bank Balances 35  836,428,124  921,618,371
Total Property and Assets  1,326,379,183 1,236,001,700

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants



Annual Report - 86

Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMETN OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes  Particulars

Expenses of Management ( Not Applicable to 
any particular Fund or Account)
Directors' Fees  610,650 678,500
Meeting Expenses  374,743  240,815
Advertisement & Publicity   498,367  525,510
Subscription & Registration   548,244  2,275,179
Depreciation  12,142,795  12,797,956
Audit Fees  132,250  132,250
  14,307,049  16,650,210
Worker's Profit Participation Fund   5,867,800  4,719,767
Net Profit before tax  117,356,032  94,395,347
Total  137,530,880 115,765,324

Interest on FDR, STD and BGTB  36  63,882,350 57,615,097
Gain on Sales of Fixed Assets  1,449,084  1,073,410
Dividend Income in Share Business   2,522,713  2,053,510
Rental Income  2,921,850  1,728,000
Gain/(Loss) on sale of shares  3,825,698  (8,762,099)

Profit /(Loss) Transferred from:   62,929,185  62,057,406
Fire Insurance Revenue Account  10,507,279  4,890,285
Marine Insurance (Cargo) Revenue Account  31,085,799  30,479,064
Marine Insurance (Hull) Revenue Account  888,142  374,073
Motor Insurance Revenue Account  6,957,863  11,861,211
Miscellaneous Insurance Revenue Account  13,490,102 14,452,773

Total  137,530,880 115,765,324
Earnings Per Share (EPS)  41  2.00  1.64

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes  Particulars

Profit Before Tax  117,356,032   94,395,347

Other comprehensive income     
Unrealized Profit /(Loss) on Investment in Share   (1,459,721) 11,447,820 

Total Comprehensive Income  115,896,311 105,843,167 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF RPOFIT OR LOSS APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes   Particulars

Balance brought forward from last year  80,323,632  77,848,083
Net Profit before Tax b/d  115,896,311 105,843,167
Deferred Tax Income/expenses  474,112 374,427
  196,694,055 184,065,677

Reserve for Exceptional Losses   37,202,364 37,354,933

Income Tax Expenses:   29,290,107 22,137,112
Current Tax 42  29,290,107 22,137,112

Dividend Paid   44,250,000 44,250,000
Balance Transferred to Statement of Financial Position  85,951,583 80,323,632
Total  196,694,055 184,065,677

Earnings Per Share (EPS)  41  2.00 1.64

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes  Particulars

Claims under the policies less Reinsurance:
Paid during the year   172,360,290  156,723,118
Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims
at the end of the year whether due or intimated 27  158,070,378 149,519,771
   330,430,668 306,242,889
Less: Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year  149,519,771  129,893,918
  180,910,897  176,348,971

Agency Commission 38  65,258,670 64,178,331
Expenses of Management  37  98,637,389 79,981,947
Reserve for un-expired risks of Premium Income for the year 22  149,916,876 150,360,197
Profit Transferred to Statement of profit or loss account  62,929,185  62,057,406
Total   557,653,018 532,926,852

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year   150,360,197  139,041,662
Premium Less Reinsurance 40  372,023,643 373,549,333
Commission on Reinsurance ceded   35,269,178  20,335,858
Total  557,653,018  532,926,852

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
FIRE INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes  Particulars

Claims under the policies less Reinsurance:
Paid during the year  50,075,634   40,309,587 
Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims
at the end of the year whether due or intimated 27  38,524,926  27,857,742 
   88,600,560 68,167,329 
Less: Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year   27,857,742 21,000,747 
  60,742,818  47,166,582 

Agency Commission 38 27,925,722 19,636,292 
Expenses of Management  37  38,330,489 22,834,845 
Reserve for un-expired risks being 40%
of Premium Income for the year 22  54,047,610 34,246,564 
Profit Transferred to Statement of profit or loss account   10,507,279  4,890,285 
Total  191,553,918   128,774,568 

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year    34,246,564  32,706,849 
Premium Less Reinsurance 40 135,119,025 85,616,410 
Commission on Reinsurance ceded  22,188,329  10,451,309 

Total   191,553,918  128,774,568 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
MARINE CARGO INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes  Particulars

Claims Under The Policies Less Reinsurance:     
Paid during the year   42,542,862  58,290,999
Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims at
the end of the year whether due or intimated 27  62,835,387 68,436,855
  105,378,249  126,727,854
Less: Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year  68,436,855 78,379,856
  36,941,394 48,347,998

Agency Commission 38  17,109,150 17,214,689
Expenses of Management 37  25,507,629 22,218,985
Reserve for un-expired risks being 40% 22  41,567,250 42,497,253
of premium income for the year
Profit Transferred to Statement of profit or loss account   31,085,799  30,479,064
Total   152,211,223  160,757,989

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year   42,497,253  48,620,778
Premium Less Reinsurance 40 103,918,126 106,243,133
Commission on Reinsurance ceded  5,795,844  5,894,078

Total   152,211,223  160,757,989

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
MARINE HULL INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes Particulars

Claims under the policies less Reinsurance:     
Paid during the year  22,108  621
Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims
at the end of the year whether due or intimated 27  -   -  
   22,108  621
Less: Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year   -     -  
   22,108  621
Agency Commission 38  270,863 228,938
Expenses of Management 37  394,550 279,937
Reserve for un-expired risks being 100% of 22 1,845,698 1,567,441
premium income for the year 
Profit Transferred to Statement of profit or loss account  888,142  374,073
Total  3,421,361  2,451,010
Balance of Account at the beginning of the year  1,567,441  877,913
Premium Less Reinsurance 40  1,845,698 1,567,441
Commission on Reinsurance ceded  8,222 5,656
Total   3,421,361  2,451,010

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
MOTOR INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes Particulars

Claims under the policies less Reinsurance:     
Paid during the year   53,684,912   32,974,395 
Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims
at the end of the year whether due or intimated 27  54,709,098 50,245,580 
  108,394,010  83,219,975 
Less : Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year  50,245,580 24,277,000 
  58,148,430 58,942,975 
Agency Commission 38 12,469,117 16,347,758 
Expenses of Management 37  16,827,538 18,715,776 
Reserve for un-expired risks being 40%  22 33,053,409  44,059,201 
of premium income for the year     
Profit Transferred to Statement of profit or loss account  6,957,863  11,861,211 
Total  127,456,357  149,926,921 

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year    44,059,201  39,447,228 
Premium Less Reinsurance 40 82,633,522 110,148,001 
Commission on Reinsurance ceded  763,634  331,692 
Total   127,456,357 149,926,921 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
MISCELLANEOUS INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

 Notes Particulars

Claims under the policies less Reinsurance:     
Paid during the year   26,034,774  25,147,516 
Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims 
at the end of the year whether due or intimated 27 2,000,967  2,979,594   
  28,035,741   28,127,110 
Less: Outstanding claims at the end of the previous year   2,979,594  6,236,315 
  25,056,147  21,890,795 

Agency Commission 38  7,483,819  10,750,654 
Expenses of Management 37  17,577,183  15,932,404 
Reserve for un-expired risks being 40%  22  19,402,909 27,989,739 
of premium income for the year     
Profit Transferred to Statement of profit or loss account  13,490,102 14,452,773 
Total  83,010,160   91,016,365 

Balance of Account at the beginning of the year   27,989,739  17,388,894 
Premium Less Re-Insurance 40  48,507,272 69,974,348 
Commission on Re-insurance ceded  6,513,149   3,653,123 
Total   83,010,160 91,016,365 

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

Cash Flows from operating activities:     
Collection from premium & other income   409,286,836  478,175,108
Less: Payments for management expenses, re-insurance & claims  (327,567,614)  (329,408,833)
Less: Income Tax and other source Taxes paid   (22,074,894)  (19,494,428)
Less: Payment of WPPF   (4,719,767)  (4,080,493) 
Interest received on STD/SND   1,633,193  1,467,897 
   56,557,754  126,659,251
Cash Flows from investing activities:     
Acquisition of Fixed Assets   (166,709,721)  (23,200,777) 
Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets   1,518,000  1,403,000
Investment in Shares   -    (21,500,000)
Encashment of FDR   -    26,888,537 
Investment in FDR   -    (63,500,000)
Interest received on FDR   59,291,657  54,596,573 
Interest received on BGTB   2,957,500  2,957,500 
Rental Income   2,921,850  1,728,000 
Dividend Income from Share Business   2,522,713  2,053,510
   (97,498,001)  (18,573,657)

Cash Flows from financing activities:
Dividend Paid   (44,250,000)  (44,250,000)
   (44,250,000)  (44,250,000)
Net Cash inflow/outflow for the year   (85,190,247)  63,835,594
Opening Cash and Bank balances   921,618,371  857,782,777
Cash and Bank balances   836,428,124  921,618,371

Net operating Cash Flow per share   1.27  2.86

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants

 Notes Particulars
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

(Amount in Taka)

Balance on January 01, 2018 442,500,000 231,762,034  80,323,632  754,585,666
Net Profit before Tax  -   -    115,896,311  115,896,311
Deferred Tax Income/expenses    474,112  474,112
Provision for Income Tax  -    -   (29,290,107)  (29,290,107)
Reserve for Exceptional Losses  -    37,202,364  (37,202,364)  -  
Dividend Paid   (44,250,000)  (44,250,000)
Balance on December 31, 2018 442,500,000 268,964,398 85,951,583  797,415,981

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants

Particulars Share Capital
Reserve for
Exceptional

Losses

Profit or Loss
Appropriation

Account

Total
Shareholders

Equity

(Amount in Taka)

Particulars Share Capital
Reserve for
Exceptional

Losses

Profit or Loss
Appropriation

Account

Total
Shareholders

Equity

Balance on January 01, 2017 442,500,000  194,407,101  77,848,083  714,755,184
Public Share   -     - 
Net Profit before Tax -   -   105,843,167  105,843,167
Deferred Tax income/Expenses  -    -    374,427  374,427
Provision for Income Tax -    -   (22,137,112)  (22,137,112)
Reserve for Exceptional Losses -   37,354,933 (37,354,933)  - 
Dividend Paid    (44,250,000)  (44,250,000)
Balance on December 31, 2017 442,500,000  231,762,034 80,323,632  754,585,666



Annual Report - 97

Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
FORM "AA"

CLASSIFIED SUMMARY OF ASSETS AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Book Value

Class of Assets

Deposit against Bangladesh Govt.Treasury Bond 25,000,000 25,000,000  At Cost 
Investment in Shares 54,090,622 58,728,157  Market Value 
Cash on Fixed Deposit and STD Account with Bank  834,505,226 915,322,389  Book Value 
Cash in Hand 1,651,428 5,917,514  Do 
Stamp in Hand 271,470 378,468  Do 
Interest Accrued but not due 25,817,563 24,746,014  Do 
Amount due from other persons or bodies Carrying on 
Insurance business 1,200,851  1,200,851  Do 
Sundry Debtors Including Advances, Deposits & Prepayments  127,898,143  103,491,537  Do 
Fixed Assets (At Cost less Depreciation)  255,059,360  100,561,350  Written Down 
   Value  
Stock of Stationery 884,520  655,420  At Cost 
Total 1,326,379,183 1,236,001,700

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 & Annexure-A to D form an integral part of the financial statements.

 
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer

                                                       Signed in terms of separate report of even date annexed   

Dated 18th April, 2019    A. Hoque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh   Chartered Accountants

Remarks
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

1.00 Corporate Information–Domicile, Legal Form and Country of Incorporation
 The Company was incorporated in Bangladesh as a Public Company Limited by Shares on the 21 day of May
 1996 under the Companies Act, 1994 and its commencement of business was started from 21 day of May,
 1996 and the registration from the Controller of Insurance  was received to start general insurance business
 on 18th day of June, 1996 which has been renewed upto December 31, 2018.

 Address of Registered Office        
 The registered office of the Company is located at 68,Motijheel Commercial Area (Level-15), Dhaka-1000.
 The operation of the company are being carried out through its 27 nos. of branches located all over Bangladesh
 with Head office at Rashid Tower(3rd Floor), Plot #11, Road # 18, Gulshan #1, Dhaka-1212.

 Principal Activities and Nature of Operation
 The main objective of the Company is to carry on all kinds of insurance, guarantee and indemnity business
 other than life insurance business.

2.00 Basis of Preparation
 The following underlying assumptions, measurement base, laws, rules, regulations and accounting pronouncements
 have been considered in preparing and presenting the financial statements:     

 Going Concern        
 Accrual Basis        
 Historical Cost Convention        
 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ( GAAP) and practices in Bangladesh     
 The Companies Act, 1994        
 Insurance Act, 2010        
 Insurance Rules ,1958 followed for the purpose of prescribed format.      
 The Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987        
 The Accounting Standards adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB).   

2.01 Premium Recognition         
 Premium is recognized when insurance policies are issued, but the premium of company's share of public
 sector insurance business (PSB) is accounted for in the year in which the statements are received from
 Sadharan Bima Corporation.        

3.00 Compliance of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
 The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
 (IFRSs), including International Accounting Standards (IASs).       

4.00 Risk and Uncertainty for use of Estimates and Judgments
 In conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) including the International Accounting
 Standards (IASs) in preparation of financial statements the management is required to make judgments,
 estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
 assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and for contingent assets and liabilities that require disclosure during
 and at the date of financial statements.

 Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are used for accounting
 of certain items such as long-term contracts, provision for doubtful accounts, depreciation and amortization,
 taxes, reserves and contingencies.
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5.00 Compliance of  International Accounting Standards (IASs)     
  Considering relevant significant accounting issues, in preparing and presenting these financial statements, 
 the company implemented the following International Accounting Standards IASs issued and revised by the
 ICAB in light of the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as per current practices prevailing in
 Bangladesh as on the balance sheet date:     
  

  1  Presentation of Financial Statements 1 Complied
  2  Statement of  Cash Flows 7 Complied
  3  Events after the Reporting Period 10 Complied
  4  Income Tax 12 Complied
  5  Property, Plant and Equipment 16 Complied
  6  Revenue 18 Complied
  7  Related Party Disclosures 24 Complied
  8  Financial Instruments Presentation 32 Complied
  9  Earnings Per Share 33 Complied
  10  Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 37 Complied

6.00 Specific Accounting Policies Selected and Applied for Significant Transactions and Events    
 For significant transactions and events that have material effect, the Company’s Director's selected and applied  
 specific accounting policies within the framework of IAS 1 ["Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements"],  
 in preparation and presentation of financial statements have been consistently applied throughout the year  
 and were also consistent with those used in earlier years.     

 For proper understanding of the financial statements, accounting policies set out below in one place as  
  prescribed by the IAS 1 “Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements”.     

(a) Revenue Recognition      
  Revenue represents invoiced value of policies. Revenue is recognized when policies are made.Invoices

were made after satisfying the following conditions as prescribed by IAS 18 "Revenue Recognition":    
(i)    the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the policies have been transferred to the policyholder; 
 (ii)   the amount of revenue was measured reliably;    
 (iii)   it was probable that the economic benefits relating to the transactions will flow to the Company;  
 (iv)   neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective control usually associated with owner ship of the 
  policy was retained by the Company; and     
(v)  cost relating to the transactions was measured reliably.

(b) Materiality and aggregation    
 Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Item of a dissimilar

nature or function are presented separately unless are immaterial.   

(c) Revenue Account     
  While preparing the Revenue Account, the effect of necessary adjustment has duly been given in to accounts 

in respect of re-insurance business ceded and accepted. Re-Insurance Premium ceded has been accounted 
for into accounts.

Surplus or deficit on revenue has been arrived at after providing for un-expired risks @ 40% on all business 
except Marine Hull Insurance for which 100% provision has been created for un-expired risks.

(d) Premium and Claim     
  The total amount of premium earned on various classes insurance business underwritten during the period 

has been duly accounted for in the books of account of the Company and while preparing the  financial  state-
ments the effect of re-insurance ceded as well as the effect of total estimated liabilities in respect of outstanding 
claims at the end of the period whether due or intimated have also been reflected in order to arrive at the net 
underwriting profit for the period.

SL Name of IAS No. of IAS Status
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(e) Management Expenses       
 The management expenses charged to Revenue Account amounting to Tk 98,637,389 represent approximately

19.65% of Gross Premium of Tk 501,908,044 (including public sector business). The said management 
expenses have been apportioned 38.86% to fire,26.26% to marine (cargo & hull), 17.06% to motor,17.82% to 
miscellaneous business as per activity/Premium Income.   

 Property , Plant & Equipment        
(f) Recognition & measurement       
 These are capitalized at the cost of acquisition and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

in compliance with the benchmark treatment of IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment". The cost of acquisi-
tion of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 
working condition for its intended use and other related incidental charges. Expenditure incurred after the 
assets have been put into operation, such as repairs & maintenance is normally charged off as revenue 
expenditure in the period in which it is incurred. In situation where it can be clearly demonstrated that the 
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use 
of the fixed assets, the expenditure is capitalized as an additional cost of the assets.    
    

(g) Subsequent Cost       
 The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying 

amount of the item if it is pobable that the future economic benefits associated with the part will  flow to the 
company and its cost can be measured reliably.

(h) Depreciation        
 In respect of all fixed assets, depreciation is provided to amortize the cost of the assets after commissioning, over their 

expected useful economic lives in accordance with the provision of IAS 16 "Property, Plant  and Equipment"  
     

 Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been charged at a reducing balance method. 12 month's depreciation  has 
been charged on the book value of Fixed Assets excluding Land at the rates varying from 5% to 30%. Depreciation 
is charged at the rate shown below:

  Class of Assets Rate of Depreciation   

  Office Equipment 20%   
  Books & Periodicals 20%   
  Car/Motor Vehicles 25%   
  Office Decoration 30%   
  Furniture & Fixture 10%   
  Telephone Installation 15%   
  Building 5%   

Full month Depreciation is charged during the month of acquisition and no depreciation is charged during 
the month of disposal.

 De-recognition      
 An item of property , plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 

are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the assets is included  in the statement 
of comprehensive income in the year the asset is de-recognized.

(i) Disposal of Fixed Assets      
 On disposal of Fixed assets ,the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or loss on such 

disposal is reflected in the Profit or Loss Account ,which is determined with reference to the net  book value 
of the assets and net sales proceeds.
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 (j) Investment in FDR and Shares      
Investment is stated at its cost of acquisition and interest earned on statutory deposits lying with the Bangladesh
Bank in the form Bangladesh Govt. Treasury  Bond and the interest and profit earned on term deposit have 
been duly accounted for on accrual basis. The Statement of Profit or Loss Account  also reflects the income 
on account of interest on investment in FDR,Bond, Shares and Miscellaneous Income.

(k) Sundry Debtors (Including Advance, Deposits and Pre-Payments)     

 These are carried at original invoice amounts, which represent net realizable value.    

(l) Cash and Cash Equivalents      
 For the purpose of Statement of Financial Position and  Statement of Cash Flows, cash in hand, fixed deposit 

with other banks, collection in hand, stamp in hand and bank balances represent Cash and  Cash Equiva-
lents considering the IAS 1 "Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements" and IAS 7 "Statement of 
Cash Flows", which provide, that cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are not restricted as to use.

(m) Other Current Assets      
Other current assets have a value on realization in the ordinary course of the company's business which is at 
least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Statement of Financial Position .

(n) Income Tax      
 Current Tax

Current Tax has been provided on the estimated taxable profit for the year under review at 37.50% tax rate 
being the tax rate applicable for Insurance Company. It also includes adjustments for earlier year's short/excess 
provision.      

 Deferred Tax       
 The company has adopted deferred Tax during the year under review in compliance with the provisions of 

International Accounting Standards ( IAS-12 ) 'income Taxes ' the company's policy of recognition of deferred 
Tax assets/Liabilities is based on temporary differences (Taxable or Deductable) between the carrying amount 
( Book Value) of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and its tax base, and accordingly, deferred 
tax income/expenses has been considered to determine net profit after tax  and Earning Per Share ( EPS).

 Provision for Income Tax       

 Basis of Provision for Income Tax: Net Profit -Reserve for exceptional loss x tax rate.   

(o) Dividend  

 10% Cash Dividend has been paid for the year 2017.       

(p) Cost of Post Employment Benefits       

 (i) Defined Contribution Plan      
  There is no defined contribution plan.      

 (ii) Defined Benefits Plan      
  There is no defined benefits plan.      

 (iii) Insurance Scheme      
  There is no Insurance scheme covering personal accident or death or partial or full disability.

 (iv) Number of Employees     
  There were 428 Employees at the period ended for December 31, 2018 whose salary exceeds Tk.
  6,000 per month.
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  Particulars No. of Employees 
  Chief Executive Officer 1 
  Deputy Managing Director  7 
  Assistant Managing Director 2 
  Chief Financial Officer 1 
  Senior General Manager 9 
  General Manager 12 
  Senior Deputy General Manager 2
  Deputy General Manager & Company Secretary 1 
  Deputy General Manager 19 
  Senior Assistant General Manager 1 
  Assistant General Manager 42 
  Officers 160 
  Other Employees 171 
  Total 428 

(q) Other Corporate Debt, Accounts Payable, Trade and Other Liabilities    
 These liabilities are carried at the anticipated settlement amount in respect of policies and services received,

whether or not billed by the policyholder and the supplier.

(r) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timings or amount. Provisions are recognized when the company  has a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events. As per IAS 37 it is probable  that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a  reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made.

(s) Earnings per Share (EPS)
The company calculates earnings per Share (EPS) in accordance with IAS 33 Earnings per Share which has 
been shown on the face of Statement of Profit or Loss Account. The disclosure has been made in  the Note 41 
in respect of numerator (net profit) and denominator (weighted average number of Shares)  used in the calcula-
tion of basic EPS with necessary computation and reconciliation.

Basic Earnings
This represents earnings for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders, as there was no preference  
dividend, minority interest and extra ordinary items, the net profit for the year has been considered as  fully 
attributable to the ordinary shareholders.

Diluted Earnings per Share
No diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution 
during the year under review.

(t) Reserve for Exceptional Losses   
 Provision for exceptional losses has been made during the year under audit.

(u) Share of Public Sector Business
Company's Share of Public Sector business is accounted for in the period in which the complete set of  
accounts from Sadharan Bima Corporation (SBC) is received. During the period the company has included 
4 (Four) quarters of its share of the Public Sector business as confirmed by the Sadharan Bima  Corporation 
(SBC) in the following manner:   
 



Annual Report - 103

Bangladesh National Insurance Co. Ltd.

  Period  Particulars of Quarter No.
  1st July, 2017 to 30th Sept, 2017 3rd Quarter of 2017 1 (One)
  1st Oct, 2017 to 31st December, 2017 4th Quarter of 2017 1 (One)
  1st Jan, 2018 to 31st March , 2018 1st Quarter of 2018 1 (One)
  1st April, 2018 to 30 th June , 2018 2nd Quarter of 2018 1 (One)
  Total   4 (Four)

(v) Recognized Gains and Losses     
 No gain or loss was directly dealt with though the shareholders equity without being recognized in the  Statement

of Comprehensive Income.

Therefore, net profit after tax for the year is the total recognized gains.

(w) Historical Cost Income and Expenditure
As there was no extra ordinary item, there was no difference in profit from ordinary activities before taxation 
and the net profit before tax. Furthermore, as there was no revaluation of fixed assets in  previous years 
and during the year under review, there was no factor like the differences between historical cost deprecia-
tion and depreciation on revalued amount, realization of revenue surplus on retirement or disposal of assets 
etc. Therefore, no separate note of historical cost profit and loss has  been presented.

(x) Statement of Profit or Loss Account     
 The results for the year were not materially affected by the following:     
 (a)  transactions of a nature not usually undertaken by the company:     
 (b)  circumstances of an exceptional or non-recurring nature:
 (c)  charges or credits relating to prior years:

7.00 Classified Summary of Assets     
 The valuation of all assets as at December 31, 2018 as shown in the Statement of Financial Position and in the  
 classified summary of assets in Form "AA" annexed with the report has been reviewed and the said assets have  
 been set-forth in the Statement of Financial Position at amount not exceeding their realizable or market value  
 in aggregate.     

8.00 Financial Instruments and Derivatives Primary Financial Instruments (Financial Assets and Liabilities)  
 The disclosure of primary financial instruments carried at the Statement of Financial Position date alongwith  
 the recognition methods and risks involved are summarized in Note 44 in accordance with the provisions of  
 IAS 32 Financial Instruments: "Disclosure and Presentation.     

9.00 Derivative Financial Instruments     
 The Company is not a party to any derivative contract at the Statement of Financial Position date, such as  
 forward exchange contract, currency swap agreement or interest rate option contract to hedge currency exposure  
 related to import of raw materials and others or principal and interest obligations of foreign currency loans.  

10.00 Information by Industry Segments and Geographical Areas Industry Segment Information    
 No mention is made because the company does not have any segment other than the general insurance business. 

 Geographic Segment Information     
 Not applicable as the company does not have any business unit outside Bangladesh.    

11.00 Reporting Currency     
 The Financial Statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka which is the Company's functional currency. Foreign  
 Currency Transactions was transacted during the year and thus the conversion of  Foreign Currency into  
 Bangladeshi Taka Currency is required the year ended December 31, 2018.
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12.00 Comparative Information and Re-Arrangement thereof       
 Comparative information have been disclosed in respect for the year December 31, 2018 for all numerical  
 information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for  
 understanding of the current year's financial statements.       

 Figures of the year 2017 have been rearranged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparability with  
 the current year.       

13.00 Transactions with Related Parties       
 During the year under review the Company carried out the transactions with the related parties in the normal course  
 of business and on arm's length Basis.       

14.00 Events after Reporting Period       
 The Board of Directors has recommended 12% cash dividend on paid up capital for the year ended December  
 31, 2018 at its 143th Board Meeting held on 18.04.2019 subject to approval of the Annual General Meeting. 

15.00 Approval of the Financial Statements       
 The Financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18.04.2019     

16.00 Reporting Period       
 The Financial Statements of the Company cover for the year from January 01, 2018 to December 31, 2018.  

17.00 Statement of Cash Flows       
 Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 "[Statement of Cash Flows]" and the  
 Cash Flow from the operating activities have been presented under direct method as required by the Securities  
 and Exchange Rules 1987 and considering the provisions of Paragraph 19 of IAS 7 which provides that "  
 Enterprises are Encouraged to Report Cash Flow from Operating Activities Using the Direct Method.   

18.00 Components of the Financial Statements       
 According to the International Accounting Standards (IAS) 1 "Presentation and Preparation of Financial Statements",  
 the complete set of Financial Statements includes the following components:     

 (i)  Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2018;

 (ii) Statement of Profit or Loss Account for the year ended December 31, 2018;

 (iii) Statement of Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended December 31, 2018;

 (iv) Statement of Profit or Loss Appropriation Account for the  year ended December 31, 2018;

 (v) Consolidated Revenue Account for the year ended December 31, 2018;     

 (vi) Revenue Accounts (Fire, Marine Cargo, Marine Hull, Motor, Miscellaneous) for the year ended  
  December 31, 2018:      

 (vii) Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended December 31, 2018;

 (viii) Statement of  Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2018;

 (ix) Form "AA": Classified Summary of Assets;

 (x) Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes 1 to 49 and Annexure -A to D. 
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31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

19.00 SHARE CAPITAL     
 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL       
 100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/= each.    1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000

20.00 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL     
 44,250,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each fully paid up in cash   442,500,000 442,500,000
 As  detailed below :

Particulars
2017

2017

% Taka

Total Holding%

2018

201820172018

% Taka

Holding
Number of Holders

 Group-A 
 Less than 5000 shares  4  -    0.01  -  

 50,001-5,00,000  1  2  0.23  0.46

 5,00,001-10,00,000  6  8  12.83  16.86

 10,00,001-20,00,000 1  5  2.61  13.04

 20,00,001-45,00,000 6  4  35.06  29.64

 Group-B   

 Less than 5000 shares 3,163  3,601  6.63  7.50

 5,001-10,000 217  217  3.82  3.88

 10,001-50,000 207  226  10.26  10.62

 50,001-1,00,000 42  26  6.87  4.28

 1,00,001-2,00,000 14  16  4.93  5.50

 2,00,001-5,00,000  5  4  4.05  2.85

 5,00,001-10,00,000 3  2  5.40  3.08

 10,00,001-20,00,000 3  1  7.30  2.29

                  Total 3,672.00  4,112  100.00  100.00

Group--A Sponsors & Directors:
2,24,57,094 Ordinary Shares of

Tk. 10 each fully Paid in cash 50.74  224,570,940  60.00 265,500,000

Group--B Others:
2,17,92,906 Ordinary Shares of Tk.

10 each fully Paid in cash  49.26  217,929,060  40.00 177,000,000

1) Institute:  1.36  6,006,050  1.06  4,684,220.00

2) Foreign:  0.17  719,420  0.18  81,842.00

3) General Public: 47.73  211,203,590  38.76  172,233,938.00

       Total 100.00  442,500,000  100.00 442,500,000

Classification of shareholder's by holding    
The distribution schedule of shareholdings as on December 31, 2018 was as under: 
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31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

21.00 RESERVE OR CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT      
 This is made up as follows:     
 Reserve for Exceptional Losses (21.01)    268,964,398  231,762,034
 Profit & Loss Appropriation Account (21.02)   85,951,583 77,848,083
    354,915,981  309,610,117
21.01 RESERVE FOR EXCEPTIONAL LOSSES     
 This is made up as follows:    
 Opening Balance  231,762,034  194,407,101
 Add: During the year  37,202,364  37,354,933
 Total   268,964,398  231,762,034

 This represents profit set-aside up to the year under review as expenses to meet exceptional losses. This  
 reserve has been created as per requirement of paragraph 6(2) of 4th Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984. 
 The company has made the reserve for exceptional losses amounting to Tk 372,023,643 of  net premium  
 income earned during the year as detailed below:     
 Fire Insurance   135,119,025  85,616,410
 Marine Cargo Insurance Business   103,918,126 106,243,133
 Marine Hull Insurance Business  1,845,698 1,567,441
 Motor Insurance   82,633,522 110,148,001
 Miscellaneous Insurance Business   48,507,272 69,974,348
 Total   372,023,643  373,549,333

21.02 PROFIT OR LOSS APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT     
 This is made up as follows:    
 Opening Balance   80,323,631  77,848,083
 Add: Profit for the year    115,896,311 105,843,167
 Add : Deferred Tax Income ( Note: 26.00 )   474,112 374,427
   196,694,054 184,065,677
 Less: Reserve & Provisions:  110,742,471 103,742,045
 Reserve for Exceptional Losses   37,202,364 37,354,933
 Provision for Income Tax  29,290,107 22,137,112
 Dividend Paid   44,250,000  44,250,000
    85,951,583 80,323,631
22.00 BALANCE OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS      
 This represents Reserve for un-expired risks provided against the Net Premium Income including Public Sector  
 Business of the year at the rate of 40% on different classes of business except Marine Hull Insurance for which  
 100% as shown below:    
 CLASSES OF BUSINESS  Percentage   
 Fire 40%  54,047,610  34,246,564
 Marine Cargo 40%  41,567,250 42,497,253
 Marine Hull 100%  1,845,698 1,567,441
 Motor  40%  33,053,409 44,059,201
 Miscellaneous  40%  19,402,909 27,989,739
 Total  149,916,876  150,360,198

23.00 PREMIUM DEPOSITS ACCOUNT     
    12,863,818  10,303,234
 Marine Cargo Insurance  12,863,818  10,303,234
 Balance on this account represents net premium received against cover notes for which no policy has been  
 issued within 31st December, 2018. 
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31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

24.00 SUNDRY CREDITORS INCLUDING PROVISION FOR EXPENSES AND TAXES    
 The balance is made as under:    
 Liability for Agency Commission 2,001,101  3,965,536
 Income Tax Deducted on Salary 172,800  157,500
 Provision for Audit Fees 132,250  132,250
 Provision for Income Tax (Company)  133,600,141  104,310,034
 Provision for VAT/ VAT Payable 2,629,831  2,537,640
 Liability for Insurance Stamp 1,234,572  1,210,470
 Provision for Bills Payable 2,834,930  3,441,479
 Worker's Profit Participation Fund (24.01) 5,867,800  4,719,767
  148,473,425  120,474,677

24.01 Worker's Profit Participitation Fund
 This is made up as follows:   
 Opening Worker's Profit Participitation Fund 4,719,767  4,080,493
 Add: During the year worker's profit participitation fund 5,867,800  4,719,767
  10,587,567 8,800,260
 Less: Paid  4,719,767  4,080,493
  5,867,800  4,719,767

25.00 AMOUNT DUE TO OTHER PERSONS OR BODIES CARRYING ON INSURANCE BUSINESS  
 This represents balance of account with various Private/Public Sector Insurance Companies in respect of  
 co-insurance/ re-insurance transactions and amount payable to co-insurer/re-insurer. The break up of the above  
 amount is noted below:

        A. Co-Insurance Premium Payable:    
 Phoenix Insurance Co. Ltd. 16,022 16,022
 Provati Insurance Co. Ltd. 84,735  84,735
 Eastern Insurance Co. Ltd. 97,649  97,649
 Bangladesh General Insurance Co. Ltd. 47,040  47,040
 Mercantile Insurance Co. Ltd. 24,555  24,555
 Global Insurance Co. Ltd.  101,600  101,600
 Janata Insurance Co. Ltd. 16,926  16,926
 Sub Total 388,527  388,527
       B. Re-Insurance Creditors (SBC) 54,938,703  45,584,039
 Sub Total  54,938,703  45,584,039
 Total (A+B) 55,327,230 45,972,566

26.00 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY    
        a) Deferrd Tax Liability are arrived at as follows :    
 Book value of Depreciable Fixed Assets 254,674,521  100,561,348
 Less: Tax Base Value 243,177,251  88,597,376
 Taxable Temporary Difference 11,497,270  11,963,972
 Applicable Tax Rate 37.50% 40.00%
 Deferred Tax ( Assets ) / Liabilites 4,311,476  4,785,589

      b) Deferred Tax Expenses/ (Income)    
 Opening Deferred Tax Liabilites 4,785,588  5,160,015
 Closing Deferred Tax Liabilites 4,311,476  4,785,588
 Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) 474,112  374,427
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31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

27.00 ESTIMATED LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF OUTSTANDING CLAIMS WHETHER DUE OR INTIMATED           
 The break up of the above amount is noted below:       

 
 Fire 38,524,926  -     38,524,926  27,857,742
 Marine Cargo  62,835,387  -     62,835,387  68,436,855
 Motor  54,709,098  -     54,709,098  50,245,580
 Miscellaneous  2,000,967  -     2,000,967  2,979,594
 Total 158,070,378  -     158,070,378  149,519,771 

        B. PROPERTY AND ASSETS:

28.00 Fixed Assets Less Depreciation (Annexure - D)
 This is arrived at as under:     
 Cost as on January 01,2018   168,237,270   147,351,493 
 Add: Addition during the year   166,709,721  23,200,777 
  Less: Sales during the year   2,640,000  2,315,000 
    332,306,991   168,237,270 
 Less: Depreciation:
 Dep. as on January 01,2018    67,675,920   56,863,374 
 Depreciation charged during the year    12,142,795   12,797,956 
 Accumulation depreciation   2,571,084   1,985,410 
     77,247,631   67,675,920 
 Balance as on December 31, 2018    255,059,360   100,561,350 

29.00 INVESTMENTS AT COST     
 The above amount represents the value of 10 (Ten) years Bangladesh Govt. Treasury  Bond at cost kept with   
 NCC Bank  according to the provision of Section 23 (B) of Insurance Act,2010 ( The 1st Schedule item 2 (B)  
 as detailed below:      

 1 No. 10 (Ten) years Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond at Face Value
 of Tk. 90,00,000 each vide instrument  ID BD0922301108 Date 15-02-2012
 & instrument ID BD0923341103 Date 13-03-2013 BP ID BDNICCNCC
 BP Tk. 1,60,00,000.00 respectively.    25,000,000  25,000,000 

CLASSES OF BUSINESS
PRIVATE
SECTOR

PUBLIC
SECTOR

TOTAL
31.12.2018

TOTAL
31.12.2017
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31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

30.00 INVESTMENT IN SHARES:      54,090,622  58,728,157 
 The market price of investment in shares as per requirement of IAS-39 has been shown as under:   
 

 
 A. Listed Securities at cost:        
 Bd Fin & Inv Co Ltd 30472 6.83  208,124  16.30   496,694
 Activefine 80 27.36  2,189  28.20   2,256
 Doreenpwr 8713 108.08  941,697  79.90   696,169
 Jamunaoil 20537 392.54  4,032,180  190.50   3,912,298
 Mjlbd 125634 228.43  14,353,423  99.20   12,462,893
 Bpml 8800 90.61  797,397  83.80   737,440
 Ibp 294 9.09  2,672  31.10   9,143
 Squrpharma 220 516.69  56,817  254.20   55,924
 One Bank Ltd 52500 21.13  1,109,395  15.00   787,500
 Mldyeing 5208 40.52  142,160  29.70   154,678
 Intraco 266 9.53  2,534  26.80   7,129
 Ktl 7582 9.09  68,931  25.30   191,825
 Spcl 24341 116.71  2,840,920  94.80   2,307,527
 Uttara Bank Ltd 241621 73.13  8,764,790  28.50   6,886,199
 Silvaphl 4596 10  45,960  30.10   138,340
 Sktrims 5546 9.09  50,420  46.30   256,780
 Sssteel 13491 10  134,910  -     -  
 Vfstdl 703 8.33  5,859  57.80   40,633
 Kpcl 5002 59.32  296,697  59.30   296,619
 IPO Share :       -  
 Balance with Stock Broker    -      2,650,577
 Sub total    33,857,076    32,090,622
 B.Unlisted Securities at cost:        
 Energyprima Ltd 200000 110 22,000,000    22,000,000  
 Total ( A+B )   55,857,076    54,090,622 

31.00 INTEREST ACCRUED BUT NOT DUE (On FDR & Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond)                     
 This is made up as follows:         
 Interest on FDR       24,834,493   23,762,944 
 Interest on BGTB      983,070   983,070 
 Total     25,817,563  24,746,014 

32.00 AMOUNT DUE FROM OTHER PERSONS OR BODIES CARRYING ON INSURANCE BUSINESS   
 The above amount represents the total receivable from various persons or bodies carrying on insurance business  
 as co-insurance as on December 31, 2018. The details of which are given below:    
 NAME OF THE PERSON OR BODIES       
 Green Delta Insurance Co. Ltd.      211,917   211,917 
 Rupali Insurance Co. Ltd.      20,151  20,151 
 Central Insurance Co. Ltd.      807,750   807,750 
 Prime Insurance Co. Ltd.     19,927   19,927 
 Northern General Insurance Co. Ltd.    141,106   141,106 
 Grand Total      1,200,851  1,200,851 

Name of the Company
31.12.2018

31.12.2018
No. of 
Shares

Value at
cost per 

share

Acquisition
cost

Market value
Per Share

Market value 
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31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

33.00 SUNDRY DEBTORS (INCLUDING ADVANCES DEPOSITS & PREPAYMENTS)    
 The break up of the above is as under:       
 Security Deposits Against Telephone    58,000  58,000
 Advance against Office Rent    2,898,093 5,349,628
 Advance against Salary    141,454  -  
 Advance Income Tax (Company)    115,764,091  93,689,197
 Income Tax Paid Against Protest    870,000 870,000
 Rental Income Receivable    375,950  -  
 Deposit Clearing    7,790,555  3,524,712
 Total    127,898,143 103,491,537

34.00 Stock of Stationery
 This is made up as follows:     
 Balance as on 01-01-2018   655,420  428,402
 Add : Purchase during the year    1,452,920 779,590
     2,108,340 1,207,992
 Less : Consumed  during the year   1,223,820 552,572
 Balance as on 31-12-2018    884,520 655,420

35.00 CASH AND BANK BALANCES      
 The above amount is made up as follows:      
 Fixed Deposit Receipts ( Annexure-A)    747,312,245 853,492,295
 Short Term Deposit Account ( Annexure-B)    87,192,981  61,830,094
 Cash in Hand ( Annexure-C)    1,651,428 5,917,514
 Stamps in Hand    271,470 378,468
 Total    836,428,124 921,618,371

 35.01  Fixed Deposit Receipts (FDR) :                 
 1) FDR issued by different Bank in favour of the Company.      
35.02   Short Term Deposit Account & Cash in Hand                
 a) STD Balances are in agreement with Bank balance of respective account, where necessary reconciliation  
 was done.      
 b) Cash Balances have been certified by the local management.    

36.00 INTEREST ON FDR, STD AND BGTB      
 This is made up as follows:      
 Interest on STD Account    1,633,193 1,467,897
 Interest on FDR   59,291,657 53,189,700
 Interest on BGTB    2,957,500 2,957,500
 Total    63,882,350  57,615,097

37.00 ALLOCATION OF MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (APPLICABLE TO FUND)    
     

 Fire   38,330,489  -     38,330,489  22,834,845
 Marine Cargo  25,507,629  -     25,507,629  22,218,985
 Marine Hull  394,550  -     394,550  279,937
 Motor  16,827,538  -     16,827,538  18,715,776
 Miscellaneous  17,577,183  -     17,577,183  15,932,404
 Total  98,637,389  -     98,637,389  79,981,947

APPORTIONED
EXPENSES

DIRECT
CHARGE

AMOUNT (TK.)
31.12.2018

AMOUNT (TK.)
31.12.2017

NAME OF BUSINESS
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31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

38.00 AGENCY COMMISSION     
 Class wise Agency Commission are as follows:
 

 Fire   27,925,722  -     27,925,722  19,636,292
 Marine Cargo  17,109,150  -     17,109,150  17,214,689
 Marine Hull  270,863  -     270,863  228,938
 Motor  12,469,117  -     12,469,117  16,347,758
 Miscellaneous 7,483,819  -     7,483,819  10,750,654
 Total 65,258,671  -     65,258,671  64,178,331

39.00 GROSS PREMIUM INCOME 
 Class wise Private & Govt. Gross Premium Income are as follows:     

 CLASS OF BUSINESS DIRECT      GOVT.        AMOUNT (TK.) AMOUNT (TK.)
    31.12.2018     31.12.2017   
 Fire   186,171,479  8,851,645  195,023,124 136,111,879
 Marine Cargo  114,061,003  15,752,511  129,813,514  132,438,760
 Marine Hull  1,805,750  189,433  1,995,183  1,670,268
 Motor   83,127,445  2,502,156  85,629,601  111,537,397
 Miscellaneous 49,892,125  39,554,497  89,446,622  94,975,130
 Total  435,057,802  66,850,242  501,908,044  476,733,434

40.00  NET PREMIUM INCOME 

 Premium Income Fire       Marine    Marine ( H) Motor      Miscellanious Amount     

 PSB  8,851,645  15,752,511  189,433  2,502,156  39,554,497  66,850,242 
 Private Business:
 Less Refund 186,171,479  114,061,003  1,805,750  83,127,445  49,892,125   435,057,802 

   195,023,124  129,813,514  1,995,183  85,629,601  89,446,622   501,908,044 
 R/I Premium 
 Accepted  -    -     -    -    -     -   
   195,023,124  129,813,514  1,995,183  85,629,601  89,446,622  501,908,044 
 R/I Premium Ceded 59,904,099  25,895,388  149,485  2,996,079  40,939,350  129,884,401 
 Premium Less
 Reinsurance 135,119,025  103,918,126  1,845,698  82,633,522  48,507,272   372,023,643 

                        AMOUNT (TK.)
                            31.12.2017 
 Premium Income Fire     Marine      Marine ( H)   Motor    Miscellanious Amount  
 PSB  5,203,263  17,674,168  144,018  2,552,342  23,304,104  48,877,895 
 Private Business:
 Less Refund 130,908,616  114,764,592  1,526,250  108,985,055  71,671,026  427,855,539 

   136,111,879  132,438,760  1,670,268  111,537,397  94,975,130 476,733,434 
 R/I Premium Accepted  -    -    -    -    -   -   
   136,111,879  132,438,760  1,670,268  111,537,397  94,975,130   476,733,434 
 R/I Premium Ceded 50,495,469  26,195,627  102,828  1,389,396  25,000,782  103,184,101 
 Premium Less 
 Reinsurance 

85,616,410  106,243,133  1,567,441  110,148,001  69,974,348  373,549,333 

GOVT.
AMOUNT (TK.)

31.12.2018
AMOUNT (TK.)

31.12.2017
CLASS OF BUSINESS DIRECT

AMOUNT (TK.)
31.12.2018
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31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Amount in Taka

41.00 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) AS PER IAS 33   
 Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)

 Basic EPS       = 
 Net profit after tax    

  No. of Shares  during the year                                        AMOUNT ( TK )                
   31.12.2018    31.12.2017
 EPS                  = 88,540,036  2.00   1.64   
  44250000   
  
 Computation of Earnings Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders:    

 Net Profit before Tax  117,356,032  94,395,347 
 Add : Deferred Tax Income  474,112 374,427 
 Less: Provision for Income Tax  29,290,107  22,137,112 
 Profit After Tax  88,540,036  72,632,662 

42.00 CALCULATION OF PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX   
 This is made up as follows:    
 Profit before Tax  117,356,032 94,395,347
 Less: Reserve for Exceptional Losses  37,202,364 37,354,933
 Less: Dividend Income  2,522,713  2,053,510
 Less: Gain on Sales of Fixed Assets  1,449,084 1,073,410
   41,174,161  40,481,853
 Taxable business income  76,181,871  53,913,495
 Tax on Profit  28,568,202  21,565,398
 Tax on Dividend Income  504,543  410,703
 Tax on Gain on Sales of Fixed Assets  217,363  161,012
 Provision for Income Tax  29,290,107  22,137,112

43.00 INTRINSIC VALUE OR NET ASSETS VALUE
 A. ASSETS:    
 Investment at cost  25,000,000  25,000,000
 Investment in Shares  54,090,622  58,728,157
 Interest Accrued but not due  25,817,563 24,746,014
 Amount due from other persons or bodies carrying on Insurance Business  1,200,851 1,200,851
 Sundry Debtors (Including Advances, Deposits & Prepayments) 127,898,143 103,491,537
 Cash and Bank Balances (including stock of stamp) 836,428,124  921,618,371
 Fixed Assets and Stock of Stationary  255,943,880 101,216,770
 Sub Total  1,326,379,184  1,236,001,700

 Balance of Funds and Accounts   149,916,876   150,360,198 
 Estimated Liabilities in respect of outstanding claims whether due or intimated 158,070,378  149,519,771 
 Amount due to other persons or bodies carrying on Insurance Business 55,327,230  45,972,566 
 Sundry Creditors (Including provision for expenses, Taxes)  148,473,425  120,474,677 
 Premium Deposit Account   12,863,818 10,303,234 
 Deferred Tax Liability   4,311,476 4,785,589 
 Sub Total   528,963,203 481,416,034 
 Total Net Assets (A-B)   797,415,981   754,585,667 
 No. of Shares   44,250,000 44,250,000
 Intrinsic Value/ Net Assets Value per Share (NAV) 18.02 17.05 
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Amount in Taka

44.00 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURE UNDER IAS 32 "FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:  
 DISCLOSURE AND PRESENTATION".      
 Setout below is a year-ended balance of carrying amounts (book value) of all financial assets and liabilities  
 (Financial Instruments):     
   
         

 Financial Assets
 Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond  -     25,000,000  -   25,000,000
 Investment in FDR   747,312,245  -    -    747,312,245
 Interest accrued but not due  25,817,563  -    -    25,817,563
 Sundry Debtors  -    -    127,898,143  127,898,143
 Investment in Shares  -    -    54,090,622  54,090,622
 Stamp in Hand  -    -    271,470  271,470
 Cash at Bank  87,192,981  -    -    87,192,981
 Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -    1,651,428  1,651,428
 Total   860,322,789  25,000,000  183,911,663 1,069,234,452
 Financial Liabilities
 Outstanding Claims  -    -    158,070,378  158,070,378
 Sundry Creditors  -    -    148,473,425  148,473,425
 Deferred Tax Liability  -    -    4,311,476  4,311,476
 Total   -    -    310,855,279  310,855,279
 Net Fin. Assets/Liabilities 860,322,789  25,000,000  (126,943,616)  758,379,173

45.00 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS-DISCLOSURE UNDER IAS 24 "RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE"  
 During the year under review the Company carried out the transactions with the related parties in the normal  
 course of business and on arm's length basis.    
  S.l No      Name of Party  Name of      Nature of     Transaction  
     Relationship   Transaction   Amount (Tk)  
  1 Unique Cement Industries Ltd  Common      Insurance   
     Directors     Premium    2,528,290

  2 Tanveer Oils Ltd  Do        Do        1,018,260
  3 United Sugar Mills Ltd  Do        Do        93,528
  4 Meghna Pulp & Paper Mills Ltd  Do        Do        1,221,090
  5 United Mineral Water & Pet Industries Ltd  Do        Do        216,713
  6 Tanveer Food Ltd  Do        Do        70,915
  7 Unique Power Plant Ltd  Do        Do        632,120
  8 Global Ad Star Bag Industries Ltd  Do        Do        318,520
  9 United Edible Oils Ltd  Do        Do        1,109,780
  10 Tasnim Chemical Complex Ltd  Do        Do        1,822,723
  11 Tasnim Condensed Milk Ltd  Do        Do        317,222
  12 Meghna Ship Builders & Dockyard Ltd  Do        Do        1,176,728
  13 Sonargaon Flour & Dal Mills Ltd  Do        Do        3,843,058
  14 Sonargaon Salt Industries Ltd  Do        Do        361,225
  15 Meghna Beverage Ltd  Do        Do        295,721
  16 Tanveer Paper Mills Ltd  Do        Do        423,872

46.00 PAYMENT / PERQUISITES TO DIRECTORS      
 No amount of money was spent by the Company for compensating any member of the Board for services   
 rendered other than Board Meeting Fee.

Particulars
Non Interest

Bearing
Interest Bearing

TotalMaturity within
one year

Maturity after
one year
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                                                                         Annexure-A    
The details bank wise balance of fixed deposit receipts account (FDR) as on 31-12-2018 as per books of accounts are 
as under:    
 
 SL.No.           Name of Bank Amount (Tk.)     Amount (Tk.)    
   31-12-2018        31-12-2017     
 1 A.B. Bank Ltd.  18,264,176 38,567,617
 2 Agrani Bank  1,454,287 2,614,008
 3 Al-Arafa Bank Ltd.  7,094,787  140,474,551
 4 Bangladesh Commerce Bank Ltd.   8,679,469 7,573,909
 5 Bank Asia Ltd.  7,821,606 7,429,288
 6 BASIC Bank Ltd.  1,250,052 2,333,358
 7 Dhaka Bank Ltd.  21,555,774 21,755,620
 8 Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.  20,089,066  19,417,258
 9 Eastern Bnak Ltd.  1,165,873  2,333,450
 10 EXIM Bank Ltd.  19,634,238 22,889,761
 11 First Security Islami Bank Ltd  11,338,076 10,677,500
 12 IDLC Finance Limited  12,733,602  11,107,882
 13 IFIC Bank Ltd.  18,246,705  18,673,144
 14 Islami Bank B/D Ltd.  23,799,716  22,536,614
 15 Jamuna Bank  19,498,563  19,302,096
 16 Janata Bank  8,568,972  8,293,168
 17 Lanka Bangla Finance Ltd  9,596,424  7,116,286
 18 Mercantile Bank Ltd.  7,339,905  7,442,002
 19 Megna Bank Ltd  1,629,706  1,530,500
 20 Midland Bank Ltd.  -   3,547,651
 21 Modhumoti Bank Ltd.  280,463,931  22,512,469
 22 Mutual Trust Bank   19,711,012  18,729,294
 23 National Bank Ltd.  32,861,256  37,020,268
 24 NCC Bank Ltd.  12,242,102  9,238,577
 25 NRB Commercial Bank Ltd.  1,129,304  2,864,129
 26 One Bank Ltd  6,060,031  5,764,900
 27 Prime Bank Ltd.  5,909,332  4,753,041
 28 Pubali Bank Ltd.  3,707,834  7,363,604
 29 Premier Bank Ltd  3,272,411  172,075,406
 30 Rajshahi Krishi Unnayan Bank  1,860,854  1,860,854
 31 Rupali Bank Ltd.  1,253,765  1,202,060
 32 SBAC Bank Ltd  2,442,517  2,210,918
 33 Shajalal Islami Bank Ltd.  4,727,484  2,605,669
 34 Social Islami Bank Ltd.  83,402,601  80,013,599
 35 Southeast Bank Ltd.  9,538,896 10,527,589
 36 South Bangla Agriculture Bank Ltd  6,787,561  24,842,000
 37 Standard Bank Ltd  5,176,208  7,061,895
 38 The Farmers Bank Ltd.  3,716,000  4,852,736
 39 UCBL  41,343,273 20,742,912
 40 Union Bank Ltd  1,150,587  39,730,811
 41 Uttara bank Ltd  794,289  1,903,901
    747,312,245  853,492,295
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                                             Annexure-B       
The details bank wise balance of short term deposit receipts account (STD) as on 31-12-2018 as per books of 
accounts are as under:   
  
  SL. No.         Name of Bank Amount (Tk.)         Amount (Tk.)            
   31-12-2018           31-12-2017          
 1 A B Bank Ltd.  1,342,351 2,849,469 
 2 Agrani Bank  1,258,600  2,253,646 
 3 Al-Arafa Islami Bank Ltd.  626,688  847,025 
 4 Bangladesh Commerce Bank Ltd.  86,397  85,605 
 5 Bangladesh Krishi Bank  9,281  9,281 
 6 Bank Asia Ltd.  5,713  13,051 
 7 BASIC Bank Ltd.  2,466,388  2,156,192 
 8 Dhaka Bank Ltd.  4,535  4,535 
 9 Dutch Bangla Bank, Ltd.  3,777  3,777 
 10 Eastern Bank Ltd.  590,230  578,133 
 11 Exim Bank Ltd  1,215,938  3,706,755 
 12 First Security Islami Bank Ltd  1,285,246  2,596,819 
 13 ICB Islami Bank Ltd.  539,328  541,433 
 14 IFIC Bank Ltd.  2,723,298  2,416,930 
 15 Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd.  5,402,790  4,759,378 
 16 Jamuna Bank  1,546,962  1,593,435 
 17 Janata Bank.  140,044  140,967 
 18 Midland Bank Ltd  145,044  145,045 
 19 Modhumoti Bank Ltd  1,829,014  2,060,035 
 20 Mutual Trust Bank ltd.  5,817,692  6,455,057 
 21 National Bank Ltd.  483,705 484,659 
 22 NCC Bank Ltd.  18,266,310 9,483,591 
 23 NRB Bank Ltd  50,710  80,884 
 24 One Bank Ltd.  468,663  935,486 
 25 Premier Bank Ltd  2,069,668  1,137,635 
 26 Prime Bank Ltd.  947,512 1,856,597 
 27 Pubali Bank Ltd.  2,723,226 2,245,020 
 28 Rupali Bank Ltd.  5,719 9,946 
 29 Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd.  2,649,357  7,181,769 
 30 Social Islami Bank Ltd.  31,402,856  2,272,500 
 31 Sonali Bank  409,182  373,724 
 32 Southeast Bank Ltd.  24,111  25,278 
 33 The Farmers Bank Ltd  358,606  359,236 
 34 United Commercial Bank Ltd.  206,588  2,079,749 
 35 Uttara Bank Ltd.  87,452  87,452 
   87,192,981  61,830,094
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                                                                   Annexure-C
The details Branch Wise Cash In Hand as on 31-12-2018 are as  under:   
     
 

 SL. No.             BRANCH NAME  Amount (Tk)       Amount (Tk)           
   31-12.2018        31-12.2017        
 1 Agrabad Branch  103,520 132,690
 2 B.B.Avenue Branch  150,000  150,244
 3 Bangshal Branch 55,143  74,170
 4 Bagerhat Branch 130,032 124,365
 5 Bogra Branch  -    50,056
 6 Chowmuhani Branch   -    30,000
 7 Dilkusha Branch 525  2,452
 8 DIT Branch  2,996  4,508
 9 Gulshan Branch  148,064 122,874
 10 Head  office 88,628 271,659
 11 Jamalpur Branch 30,581 64,605
 12 Jatrabari Branch  35  200,034
 13 Jessore Branch 3 16,098
 14 Jubliroad Branch  64 1,553
 15 Kawrun Bazar Branch 31,652 61,365
 16 Khatungonj Branch 10,591 16,036
 17 Khulna Branch 13,866  16,101
 18 Local Office    1,588 133,930
 19 Motijheel Branch  45 523
 20 Narayangonj Branch  -    4,525
 21 Noapara Branch  -    27
 22 Paltan Branch   200,015  200,012
 23 Rangpur Branch  30,015 30,163
 24 Sheikh Mujib Road 142  61,910
 25 Uttara Branch 31,143  21,493
 26 V.I.P.Road Branch  300,007 300,305
 27 Principal Branch 24 1,419
 28 Kushtia Branch 114,474  99,507
 29 Baridhara Branch  1,181 1,177
 30 Kadamtali Branch  234  -  
                                    TOTAL  1,444,568 2,193,801
     

  Insurance Stamp  206,860  223,713
                                   TOTAL  206,860 223,713
                            GROSS TOTAL  1,651,428  2,417,514
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BANGLADESH NATIONAL INSURANCE 
COMPANY LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ CERTIFICATE
As per regulations contained in the First Schedule of the Insurance Act, 1938/2010 and As per Section 40-c of the Act 
we certify that:

01.  The value of all assets shown in the Balance Sheet and classified on Form-“AA” annexed have been reviewed  
 as at 31st December, 2018 and in our belief, the said assets have been set forth in the Statement of Financial  
 Position at amount not exceeding their realizable or market value under the several headings enumerated in  
 the annexed form:

02.  All expenses of management wherever incurred, whether directly or indirectly in respect of Fire, Marine Cargo,  
 Marine Hull, Motor and Miscellaneous Insurance business have been fully debited in the respective Revenue   
 Account as expenses.

Chairman  Director Director Chief Executive Officer

Dated: 18th April, 2019
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh
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BNICL IT INFRASTRUCTURE
Centralized ERP Systems
All in all, having multiple ERPs in place can make for extremely expensive infrastructure, software, maintenance and 
contracting capabilities. This, in turn, means that the organization lacks agility to adapt to market changes, adopt the 
latest best practice, adhere to standards across the board and remain consistent in conforming to regulatory control.

Redundant network systems
The term redundant can describe computer or network system components, such as fans, hard disk drives, servers, 
operating systems, switches and telecommunication links that are installed to back up primary resources in case they 
fail.

Face detractor attendance systems
Face Recognition attendance system - A Powerful Biometric User Identification based on Innovative, Deep Learning 
Technology. It accepts the user’s mobile as a credential and evolves as per regular user interaction in different condi-
tions. The technology checks liveness of a face with 99.53% accuracy. It is a facial recognition attendance system that 
ensures contactless authentication and identifies user’s face in < 1 Sec.

Fully CCTV Monitoring systems
When a CCTV system is combined with a professional remote CCTV monitoring service, the effectiveness of the CCTV 
is raised to a new level by providing all the benefits of a manned on-site presence at a fraction of the cost. In the event 
of an intrusion at the customer's site, our dedicated CCTV Monitoring operators will be able to view live images from 
site whilst simultaneously transmitting audio messages to deter intruders where possible. Where appropriate, they will 
contact the relevant emergency services and key holders.

Centralized Branches Network systems
A VPN connection can be used to securely connect your branch offices to the corporate network, and to exchange data 
with partner companies. The access rights are controlled by virtual networks (VLAN), which ensure that each and every 
network participant only has access to the corporate data that is relevant to them.

Barcode Systems
For documents security reason BNICL is the company who introduced Barcode systems in non-life insurance company 
for the 1st time.
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BRANCHES

Local Office
58,DilkushaC/A(7thFloor), Dhaka-1000.
Tel:9573524-5,9587886Fax:9573525
E-mail : localoffice@bnicl.net

Dilkusha Branch
FazlurRahaman Centre, 72, Dilkusha C/A
(6/B Flat), Dhaka-1000.
Tel: 9575392, 9583428 Fax: 9575392
E-mail : dilkusha@bnicl.net

Uttara Branch
House No.25, Flat-A1, Gorib-E Newaz Avenue, 
Sector-11, Uttara, Dhaka-1230.
Phone: 88-02-7911545, Fax: 88-02-7911540
E-mail : uttara@bnicl.net
Paltan Branch
Azad Centre, 55, Purana Polton (11/A), Dhaka. 
Tel:9586623, 9586624
E-mail : paltan@bnicl.net

PrincipalBranch
W.W.Tower (Level-15), 68, Motijheel C/A, 
Dhaka-1000,Tel: 9555704
E-mail : principal@bnicl.net

Motijheel Branch
Amin Court Building (3rd Floor), 62-63, 
Motijheel C/A,Dhaka-1000. Tel: 9587267, 
9573526,E-mail : motijheel@bnicl.net

Kadamtoli Branch
Rafique Plaza (4th Floor), 1151 D.T. 
Road, Kadamtoli, Chattogram
Tel: 031-714223, 714224
E-mail : kadamtoli@bnicl.net
KhulnaBranch
58, Loyar Jessore Road (1st Floor), 
Khulna.Tel: 041-730296
E-mail : khulna@bnicl.net

Noapara Branch
HaziIdrishAli Market (2nd floor),Avoynagar,    
Noapara, Jessore. Mob: 01715-168627
E-mail : noapara@bnicl.net

Baridhara Branch
Road No.12, House No.04, Flat No.A1, Block-J, 
Baridhara, Dhaka-1212. Tel:8833670
E-mail : baridhara@bnicl.net

Gulshan Branch
Islam Mansion House No.39, Road No.126
Gulshan-1, Dhaka,Tel: 9841219
Fax: 9841219, E-mail : gulshan@bnicl.net

NarayangonjBranch
16/1, S. M. Maleh Road (5th floor),
TanBazar,, Narayangonj, Tel:  7630454
E-mail : narayanganj@bnicl.net

D.I.T.Branch
MotijheelSquare(8thFloor),1/B,D.I.TAvenue 
MotijheelC/A (DainikBanglaMoor,Dhaka. 
Tel:9574631,9574961, E-mail : dit@bnicl.net

V.I.P. Road Branch
Navana RahimArdent (4th Floor), Flat 
No.A/4, 185 Shahid Syed Nazrul Islam 
Sharani, 39 Kakrail, Paltan, Dhaka-1000. Tel: 
9337268 Fax: 9343578, E-mail : viproad@bnicl.net

RangpurBranch
KudratMansion(Asir Building)2nd Floor,
0039/01 Station Road,Rangpur.
Tel: 0521-65904, E-mail : rangpur@bnicl.net

Agrabad Branch
World Trade Center (5th Floor), 102/103,Agrabad,
Chattogram.Tel: (031) 721408-9 (Off), 
Fax: (031) 721409, E-mail : agrabad@bnicl.net

Karwanbazar Branch
57/E, Kazi Nazrul IslamAvenue (4th Floor), 
Tejgaon, Dhaka-1215,Tel: 58153197 Fax: 
9117629, E-mail : karwanbazar@bnicl.net

Jamalpur Branch
Bhai Bhai Cloth Store (1st Floor)
Baro Masjid Road, Sakal Bazar, Jamalpur. 
Tel: 01716552802, E-mail : jamalpur@bnicl.net

Sk. Mujib Road Branch
GausiyaTofayelTower (4th floor),1837 Sk.Mujib 
Road, Badamtoli, Agrabad,Chattogram,
Tel: 031-251529-4, E-mail : mujibroad@bnicl.net

B.B.Avenue Branch
9, B.B.Avenue, Dawn Plaza (10th Floor), 
Dhaka-1000,Tel: 9585074 Fax: 9584982
E-mail : bbavenue@bnicl.net

Jessore Branch
M.K. Road, JessTower (3rd Floor), Jessore. 
Tel: (0421) 68505
E-mail : jessore@bnicl.net

Khatungonj Branch
SalmaTower (3rd  Floor), Chattogram
Tel: 031-2851478, Fax: 031-2851479,
E-mail : khatungonj@bnicl.net

Jatrabari Branch
Abdur Rahim Bhuiyan Center (3rd Floor),
80/C/2, Bibirbagicha, Uttar Jatrabari, Dhaka. 
Tel: 7554456, 7554458, E-mail : jatrabari@bnicl.net

Kushtia Branch
Khan Super Market, N.S. Road  (2nd Floor), Kushtia,
Mob: 01714130478, 01730-168713
E-mail : kushtia@bnicl.net

Jubilee Road Branch
KaderTower (7th floor), 128 Jubilee Road, Tinpool, 
Chattogram, Tel: 031-635688-99
E-mail : jubileeroad@bnicl.net

Bangshal Branch
70 Shaheed Nazrul Islam Sharani (3rdFloor), 
Bangshal, Dhaka 1100, Tel:9586275
Fax: 9586274, E-mail : bangshal@bnicl.net

Bagerhat Branch
House No.54, Rail Road (Near Bangladesh-
Krishi Bank (Suktarargoli), Bagerhat.
Tel: 046864703 E-mail : bagerhat@bnicl.net
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I/We ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….........……………

of...…………………………………………………………………………………………………………........…….……………..

being a member of Bangladesh National Insurance Limited do hereby appoint Mr. / Mrs. / Miss.....................................

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..........………………

of………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………as my / 
our proxy, to vote For me / us and on my / our behalf at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 
June 26, 2019 at 10.00 a.m. at Spectra Convention Centre Limited, House No. 19, Road No. 7, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-
1212 and at any adjournment thereof or at any ballot to be taken in consequence thereof.

Notes :

01 . This Proxy Form, duly completed, signed and affixed with revenue stamp of TK. 20/- must be deposited at least 72  
 Hours before the meeting of the company’s Head Office. Proxy will be invalid if not signed and Stamp as explained  
 above.

02. Signature of the Shareholder should match with the Specimen Signature Registered with the Company.

I/We hereby record my/our attendance at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on June 26, 
2019 at 10.00 a.m. at Spectra Convention Centre Limited, House No. 19, Road No. 7, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212.

Name of Member/ Proxy : ………………….........................…………………………………………………..........………….. 

Signed this Day of

Signature of ShareholderSignature of Proxy

Date:............................................Signature of Shareholder

Revenue
Stamp

TK. 20/-

PROXY FORM

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Note: Shareholder attending meeting in person to by proxy are requested to complete Attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.

BO ID No.

BO ID No.






